
 AGENDA  
BOARD MEETING OF RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900 

JANUARY 17, 2024 

Martha Guerrero, President 

Norma Alcala, Trustee Verna Sulpizio Hull, Trustee 
Quirina Orozco, Trustee Dawnte Early, Trustee 

Blake Johnson, General Manager/Secretary  
Greg Fabun, Interim Assistant General Manager 

Ralph Nevis, District Attorney 

The meeting will be held at City Hall, City Council Chambers, 1110 West Capitol Avenue, West 
Sacramento 

5:30 PM CALL TO ORDER 

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION – PART I 

1A.  PRESENTATIONS BY THE PUBLIC ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA WITHIN THE JURISDICTION OF THE 
DISTRICT. THE AGENCY IS PROHIBITED BY LAW FROM DISCUSSING ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA BROUGHT TO 
THEM AT THIS TIME. 

1B. MONTHLY/YTD REVENUE AND EXPENSES 

CONSENT AGENDA – PART II 

2. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTIONS NUMBER 2024-01-01 AND 2024-01-02 AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL
MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A FUNDING AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF WATER
RESOURCES UNDER THE FLOOD MAINTENANCE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM AND TO ACCEPT FUNDS THEREUNDER

Comment: This item seeks Board approval for District to enter into a funding agreement with Department
of Water Resources (DWR) and to receive $296,100 under DWR’s Flood Maintenance Assistance
Program for calendar year 2024.

3. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 24-01-03 FINDING THAT A NOTICE OF EXEMPTION UNDER THE
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) RELATED TO THE DISTRICT’S ROUTINE MAINTENANCE AND
REPAIR OF DISTRICT FACILITIES IS APPROPRIATE BECAUSE SUCH MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR IS CATEGORICALLY
EXEMPT FROM CEQA

Comment: This item seeks a Board determination that the work included in the District’s 2023- 2024
routine maintenance of District levees and ditches, and/or repair of existing levee improvements, involves
negligible or no expansion of said improvements’ existing uses and, hence, falls within the categorical
exemption to the California Environmental Quality Act set forth in California Code of Regulations, title 14,
section 15301; that the subject work does not constitute an exception to the exemptions of the California
Environmental Quality Act; and that the District’s General Manager is authorized to prepare and file with
the County of Yolo the appropriate Notice of Exemption on the District’s behalf. The subject Resolution
is a Department of Water Resources requirement for participation in the 2023-2024 Federal Maintenance
Assistant Program (“FMAP”).

4. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF THE NOVEMBER 15, 2023 BOARD MEETING MINUTES

REGULAR AGENDA – PART III 

5. CONSIDERATION OF AUTHORIZATION TO CONDUCT A RECRUITMENT FOR DISTRICT ASSISTANT GENERAL
MANAGER



Agenda 01-17-24 RD 900 Board Meeting 
Page 2 
 
 

  

 

Comment: This item seeks Board approval for District to enter into an agreement with CPS HR 
Consulting to assist the recruitment of an Assistant General Manager.  

 
 
6. GENERAL MANAGER UPDATES 
 
7.  TRUSTEE COMMENTS 
 
8. ADJOURN 
  



Agenda 01-17-24 RD 900 Board Meeting 
Page 3 
 
 

  

 

 
 
I, Blake Johnson, General Manager/Secretary, declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda for 
the January 17, 2024 meeting of Reclamation District 900 was posted on January 12, 2024, at the rear entrance 
of the City of West Sacramento City Hall, 1110 West Capitol Avenue, West Sacramento, CA and at the office 
of Reclamation District 900, 889 Drever Street, West Sacramento, CA, and was available for public review.  
 
 
 
 
          
Blake Johnson, General Manager/Secretary  
Reclamation District 900 
 
 
 

All public materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the District after distribution of the agenda 
packet are available for public inspection on the District’s website at: www.rd900.org.  Any document provided at 
the meeting by staff will also be available to the public. Any document provided at the meeting by the public will 

be available the next business day following the meeting. 

http://www.rd900.org/


Current FY as of 
Oct '23 Nov '23 Total

Revenue
   4000 Assessments              2,655,632                            -               2,655,632 
   4010 WSAFCA                  846,465                            -                  846,465 
   4020 Interest Income                    35,507                            -                     35,507 
   4100 Funding Agreements                      6,350                            -                       6,350 
   4111 RD 811 Power Reimbursement                             -                              -                              -   
   4200 Miscellaneous                             -                              -                              -   
   4300 Retiree Healthcare                             -                              -                              -   
Total Revenue              3,543,954                            -               3,543,954 

Expenditures
   5000 Administrative                    98,062                   22,756                120,818 
   5200 Labor & Related                  267,076                   61,919                328,995 
   5400 Operations & Maintenance                    75,454                   31,415                106,869 
   6000 Repair Replacements & Rehab                  394,693                   57,850                452,543 
Total Expenditures                  835,285                173,940             1,009,225 
Change in Fund Balances              2,708,669               (173,940)             2,534,729 

Reclamation District 900
July '23 - Nov '23 Financials

For Management Use Only - Accrual



RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900 AGENDA REPORT 
MEETING DATE:   January 17, 2024 ITEM # 2 

SUBJECT: 

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTIONS NUMBER 2024-01-01 AND 2024-01-02 
AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A FUNDING AGREEMENT 
WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES UNDER 

THE FLOOD MAINTENANCE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM AND TO ACCEPT FUNDS 
THEREUNDER 

INITIATED OR REQUESTED BY: REPORT COORDINATED OR PREPARED BY: 
[  ] Council [ X ] Staff 

[  ] Other 

Blake Johnson, General Manager 

ATTACHMENT [ X ]  Yes [  ]  No  [  ]  Information [  ]  Direction  [ X ]  Action 

OBJECTIVE 
The objective of this report is to obtain the Reclamation District 900 (District) Board of Trustees (Board) approval 
for the General Manager to execute the funding agreement with Department of Water Resources (DWR) under 
DWR’s Flood Maintenance Assistance Program (FMAP) for calendar year 2024. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Staff respectfully recommends that the Board: 

1) Authorize the General Manager to execute funding agreement number 2024-FMAP-R900-01 with DWR,
authorize the District to receive up to $296,100 for Operation & Maintenance activities under the Flood
Maintenance Assistance Program, approve and adopt Resolution No. 2024-01-01 as set forth in Exhibit E to
the funding agreement, and approve and adopt Resolution No. 2024-01-02 in the form attached hereto.

BACKGROUND 
The Flood Maintenance Assistance Program (FMAP) is a program that provides state funds to Local Maintaining 
Agencies (LMAs) for eligible maintenance activities with a focus in helping Local Maintaining Agencies (LMA) 
obtain acceptable maintenance of State Plan of Flood Control facilities (levees, channels, and structures). This 
marks the fifth consecutive year that FMAP will provide funding to the District. Participation in the program is 
voluntary and the LMA must be in compliance with PL 84-99 and have in place a System Wide Investment 
Framework (SWIF), or approved SWIF Letter of Intent (LOI) for its levee system. 

The West Sacramento Area Flood Control Agency, on behalf of the District and State Maintenance Area 4, has 
an approved LOI for the West Sacramento Levee System and is in the final stages of review/approval with the 
Army Corps of Engineers for the SWIF. 

ANALYSIS 
The District participated in FMAP in the previous five years and was successful in securing $490,000 in FY 18/19, 
$189,000 in FY 19/20, $205,100 in FY 20/21, $350,000 in FY 21/22, and $185,000 in FY 22/23 for a total 
$1,419,100 to date. The funds during previous iterations of the program were allowed to be used for the purchase 
of equipment to perform/enhance Operation & Maintenance (O&M) activities, which allowed the District to 
expand and modernize its operational capacity without affecting its O&M budget. The funds have also been used 
to perform activities such as vegetation management and minor slope repairs that were noted as deficient in 
periodic and annual inspections. This is in addition to portions of the funds that were used to offset routine 
maintenance costs. 

The current 2024 agreement will provide $296,100 to the District for maintenance activities. Additionally, this 
proposal package has budget to cover system-wide O&M. Staff has also begun working on identifying projects 
to correct deficiencies as identified in the SWIF. The proposed budget, based on category of maintenance, is 
shown below. 



Resolutions 2024-01-01 and 2024-01-02 Authorizing General Manager to enter into Funding Agreement with DWR for the Flood 
Maintenance Assistance Program 
January 17, 2024 
Page 2 

O&M Activities: 

Activity Proposed 
Budget 

1. LOI/SWIF
2. Technical Reports
3. Administration
4. O&M Activities
5. Equipment

$20,000 
$20,000 
$14,805 
$241,295 

$0 
 

Total 2023 Costs Proposed $296,100 

Alternatives 
The recommendation is that the Board authorize the General Manager to execute the funding agreement, 
approve and adopt Resolution No. 2024-01-01, which is attached as Exhibit E to the funding agreement, and 
approve and adopt Resolution No. 2024-01-02.  The alternative would be to not authorize the funding 
agreement. This alternative is not recommended as the District would forego an opportunity to receive grant 
funds and to leverage/maximize O&M activities. 

Coordination and Review 
This report was prepared in coordination with District counsel. 

Budget/Cost Impact 
This requires minimal staff time to administer the agreement and provides $296,100 in additional funding for 
levee operation and maintenance activities. 

ATTACHMENT 
1. FMAP Funding Agreement Number 2024-FMAP-R900-01, including RD 900 Resolution No. 2024-01-01
(Exhibit E, thereto)
2. Resolution No. 2024-01-02



















































Page B-1 

04-2022 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

Local Maintaining Agency Authorizing Resolution 
Resolution No. 2024-01-02 

 
A Resolution by the Board of Trustees of Reclamation District 900 authorizing a proposal for 
funding from the Department of Water Resources and Designating a Representative of Execute 
the Agreement and any Amendments thereto, for the 2024-FMAP-RD900-01 Project. 
 
WHEREAS, the Reclamation District 900 is a California Public Agency with responsibility for 
flood maintenance and right-of-way authority of the Project facilities; 
 
WHEREAS, the Reclamation District 900 acknowledges that it must submit a new operations, 
maintenance, repair, rehabilitation, and replacement agreement with the Central Valley Flood 
Protection Board prior to the receipt of Flood Maintenance Assistance Program fund; 
 
WHEREAS, the Reclamation District 900 is authorized to enter into an agreement with the 
Department of Water Resources and the State of California; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Reclamation District 900 
as follows: 

1. That pursuant and subject to all the terms and conditions of the Budget Act of 2022 or 
most current, the Board of Trustees authorize the General Manager, or designee, to 
execute the funding agreement with the Department of Water Resources and any 
amendments thereto. 
 

2. That the General Manager, or designee, prepare the necessary data, make investigations, 
and take other such actions as necessary and appropriate to obtain funding for the 2024-
FMAP-RD900-01 Project. 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I, hereby, certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2024-01-02 was duly and regularly adopted 
by the Board of Trustees of the Reclamation District 900 at the meeting held on 
_____________________, 2024, motion by _________________________ and seconded by 
_________________, motion passed by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT:    
 
  

 
 

 
 
 
          Martha Guerrero, President 
            Reclamation District 900   

 Ralph Nevis, RD 900 Attorney 
  



RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900 AGENDA REPORT 
MEETING DATE:   January 17, 2024 ITEM # 3 

SUBJECT: 

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 24-01-03 FINDING THAT A NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 
UNDER THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) RELATED TO THE 

DISTRICT’S ROUTINE MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF DISTRICT FACILITIES IS 
APPROPRIATE BECAUSE SUCH MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR IS CATEGORICALLY 

EXEMPT FROM CEQA 
INITIATED OR REQUESTED BY: REPORT COORDINATED OR PREPARED BY: 
[  ] Council [ X ] Staff 

[  ] Other 

Blake Johnson, General Manager 

ATTACHMENT [ X ]  Yes [  ]  No  [  ]  Information [  ]  Direction  [ X ]  Action 

OBJECTIVE 
The objective of this report is to obtain the Reclamation District 900 (District) Board of Trustees (Board) approval 
for the General Manager to submit a Notice of Exemption to Yolo County for the District’s routine maintenance 
program and to continue to participate in the State of California’s Flood Maintenance Program. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Staff respectfully recommends that the Board adopt Resolution 24-01-03 finding that the District’s routine 
maintenance and repair of District Facilities is Categorically Exempt from the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA). 
BACKGROUND 
The Flood Maintenance Assistance Program (FMAP) is a program that provides state funds to Local Maintaining 
Agencies (LMAs) for eligible maintenance activities with a focus in helping LMAs obtain acceptable maintenance 
of State Plan of Flood Control facilities (levees, channels, and structures). This marks the fifth consecutive year 
that FMAP will provide funding. Participation in the program is voluntary and the LMA must be in compliance 
with PL 84-99 and have in place a System Wide Investment Framework (SWIF), or approved SWIF Letter of 
Intent (LOI) for its levee system. 

As part of the FMAP agreement, the State of California now requires that Districts file a Notice of Exemption with 
their respective Counties or otherwise comply with CEQA on all maintenance projects. 

ANALYSIS 
The work included in the District’s 2023- 2024 routine maintenance of District levee and ditches, and/or repair of 
existing levee improvements involves negligible or no expansion of said improvements’ existing uses and, hence, 
falls within the categorical exemption to the California Environmental Quality Act set forth in California Code of 
Regulations, title 14, section 15301. The description of the work included in the routine maintenance is included 
in the agreement with the Department of Water Resources, 2024-FMAP-R900-01, which is before the Board in 
Agenda Item No. 2. Further information in support of the Resolution is set forth in the Environmental Information 
Form attached here as Attachment 2. 

Alternatives 
The recommendation is that the Board approve Resolution 2024-01-03 and authorize the General Manager to 
prepare and submit a Notice of Exemption to Yolo County.  The alternative would be to not authorize this 
Notice of Exemption, which would jeopardize the District’s FMAP funding agreement with the DWR. 

Coordination and Review 
This report was prepared in coordination with District counsel. 

Budget/Cost Impact 
This requires minimal staff time and fees to submit Notice of Exemption and pay County and California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife fees. 

ATTACHMENT 
1. Resolution 24-01-03
2. Environmental Information Form (EIF)
3. Notice of Exemption



ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION FORM - DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES 
Grant Recipients are responsible for complying with all applicable laws and  regulations for their projects, 
including the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Work that is subject to the California  
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) shall not proceed under this Agreement until documents that satisfy the  
CEQA process are received by the Department of Water Resources (DWR) and DWR has completed its  CEQA 
compliance determination. Work that is subject to CEQA shall not proceed until and unless approved by  
DWR. Such approval is fully discretionary and shall constitute a condition precedent to any work for which  it 
is required. Once CEQA documentation has been completed, DWR will consider the environmental  
documents and decide whether to continue to fund the project or to require changes, alterations or other  
mitigation. 

Grant Recipient: ________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Agreement #: ________________________________________
Project Name: __________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Project Manager: _______________________________________ ________________________________________________  
Address: ________________________________________________________________________________________________  
Phone Number: _________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

   

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

   

 
 

 

1. List the source of any other grants or funds received from DWR to implement a portion of this project. 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________

2. Is this a project as defined by CEQA?  Yes  No  (if "yes", skip to #3) If "no", please explain below then 
skip to #8. 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________

3. Is this project exempt from CEQA compliance?  Yes  No  (if "no", skip to #4) If “yes”, provide reasons 
for exemption. Cite the CEQA Article, Section and Title of the CEQA exemption, if appropriate.  A partial 
list of the statutory exemptions is found in Cal. Code Regs., tit.14, art. 18 (sections 15260 – 15285) and a list 
of categorical exemptions is found in Cal. Code Regs., tit. 14, art. 19 (sections 15300 – 15332). A copy of 
CEQA and the applicable regulations may be found at:
http://resources.ca.gov/ceqa/docs/2016_CEQA_Statutes_and_Guidelines.pdf

Check appropriate box below: 

 Lead Agency has already filed a Notice of Exemption (NOE) with the State Clearinghouse and/or               

County Clerk. Attach copy of NOE and, if applicable, a copy of Board Resolution.

 Lead Agency will file a NOE with the State Clearinghouse and/or County Clerk. Provide estimated 

date: ____________________________

  Lead Agency will NOT file a NOE with the State Clearinghouse and/or County Clerk.

If Lead Agency chooses not to file a NOE, sufficient documentation and information must be submitted to the DWR 
Grant Manager, along with this form, to allow DWR to make its own determination that the project is exempt from 
CEQA.

Reason for exemption: 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

http://resources.ca.gov/ceqa/docs/2016_CEQA_Statutes_and_Guidelines.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                 

                 

 

 

___________________________________________ __________________________ 

___________________________________________  __________________________ 

 ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION FORM 

4.

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

If the project will require CEQA compliance, identify the Lead Agency.
CEQA Lead Agency: _______________________________________________________________________________ 
Please check types of CEQA documents that have been or are to be prepared:

Initial Study

Negative Declaration / Mitigated Negative Declaration

Environmental Impact Report

Please describe the status of the CEQA documents, expected date of completion, and estimated cost, 
if requesting DWR funds relating to CEQA compliance:
Status: _____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Date of Completion: _______________________________________________________________________________ 
Estimated Costs: ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

If the CEQA document has been completed, please provide the name of the document and
the State Clearinghouse number, if available.  
___________________________________________________________  _______________________________________ 

Please list all environmental permits that must be obtained to complete the project: (attach
additional pages, as necessary)
TYPE OF PERMIT REQUIRED/PERMITTING AGENCY 

_____________________________________________________________________________  

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

This form was completed by: 

DATE RECEIVED OR 

EXPECTED 

____________________ 

____________________ 

____________________ 

____________________ 

____________________ 

____________________ 

____________________ 

____________________

Print or Type Name Phone Number 

Signature Date 

Please send the completed and signed form to DWR Grant Manager. Use of Electronic Mail and Electronic 
Signature (with Appropriate Written Consent) is Recommended.
For DWR internal use: 

 DWR received environmental documents. 
 DWR made findings. 

End Form



 
 

 

 
  
 

  

  
   

   

 

  

 

 
 

 
 
 

     

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

   
     

 
  

 
      
 

   

   
 

      
   

 
   

 

 

  

 

  

 

        Statutory Exemptions. State code number:  

          

   

_______________________________________________

Print Form 

Notice of Exemption Appendix E 

 From: (Public Agency):  ____________________________To: Office of Planning and Research 
P.O. Box 3044, Room 113

 _______________________________________________Sacramento, CA 95812-3044 

 County Clerk 
(Address) 

___________________________ 

___________________________ 

County of:  __________________ 

Project Title:  ____________________________________________________________________________ 

Project Applicant:  ________________________________________________________________________ 

Project Location - Specific: 

Project Location - City: ______________________ Project Location - County: 

Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of Project: 

_____________________ 

Name of Public Agency Approving Project:  _____________________________________________________ 

Name of Person or Agency  Carrying Out Project: ________________________________________________ 

Exempt Status:  (check one): 
Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); 15268); 

Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a)); 

Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c)); 

Reasons why project is exempt: 

Lead Agency 
Contact Person: ____________________________ Area Code/Telephone/Extension: _______________ 

If filed by applicant: 
1. Attach certified document of exemption finding.
2. Has a Notice of Exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project?  Yes No 

Signature: ____________________________ Date: 

Signed by Lead Agency Signed by Applicant 

Authority cited: Sections 21083 and 21110, Public Resources Code. Date Received for filing at OPR:  
Reference: Sections 21108, 21152, and 21152.1, Public Resources Code. 

_______________ 

Categorical Exemption. State type and section number:  ____________________________________ 

______________________________________________ 

______________ Title: _______________________ 

Revised 2011 



  

RD 900 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 
RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900 

November 15, 2023 
Minutes 

 
 

The Regular Board meeting was called to order at 5:35 PM by President Guerrero. Also in attendance at the 
meeting were: Trustees Alcala, Early, and Sulpizio Hull, General Manager Johnson, and District Counsel Nevis. 
 
 
 
GENERAL ADMINISTRATION – PART I 
 
Entry No. 1 
Heard General Administration Functions as follows:  
 
A. Presentations by the public on matters not on the agenda within the jurisdiction of the District. The Agency 

is prohibited by law from discussing issues not on the agenda brought to them at this time.  
 
NA 

 
CONSENT AGENDA – PART II 
 
Entry No. 2 - Consideration of an access easement agreement with Clear Channel Outdoors, LLC. 
 
Entry No. 3 - Consideration of a Contract with Cropper, an Accountancy Corporation to Provide Financial Auditing 
Services for the 2022-2023 Fiscal Year. 
 
Entry No. 4 - Consideration of approval of the August 2, 2023 meeting minutes 
 
 
MOTION: Sulpizio Hull SECOND: Early AYES: Early, Sulpizio Hull, Alcala, Guerrero 
NOES: None ABSTAIN: None ABSENT: Orozco 
 
The consent agenda passed 4-0, by roll call vote. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA – PART III 
 
Note: Entry No. 5 was inadvertently left off the November 15, 2023 Agenda. To be consistent with the 
Agenda, Entry No. 5 will not be used for these meeting minutes. 
 
Entry No. 6 – General Manager Updates 
GM Johnson discussed the roof replacement needs over the garage/warehouse portion of the building. A few 
minor leaks but does need to be replaced. This had been budgeted in our capital improvement program for this 
fiscal year.  GM and attorney Nevis were working on a Request for Bid. The replaced roof above the office has 
had no leaks. 
 
GM Johnson discussed landscaping for the office. The landscaping will be drought resistant. Currently, ponding 
occurs along the roadway/landscaping area during most rain events. The City is looking at placing a storm drain 
drop inlet to alleviate this ponding. 
 
Enty No.  7 - Trustee Comments 
Trustee Early asked about the hiring of the Assistant General Manager. GM Johnson stated that the 
advertisement had been placed on LinkedIn, Indeed, and the District’s website. GM Johnson also spoke with 
candidates for the General Manager position. At this time, there were no candidates for the position. Trustee 
Early recommended that we hire a recruiting firm to assist. This will be brought to the next Board meeting for 
approval. 
 
Trustee Sulpizio Hull asked about the USACE inspections along with DWR inspections. The District meets and 
drives with the DWR inspector to look at and discuss potential deficient sites along the levee. The DWR provides 
a report of this inspection within a week. The USACE inspection is a more thorough inspection. The USACE 
usually has a team of 5 people that walk the entire levee system looking for deficiencies. The report produced 



Reclamation District 900 
November 15, 2023 Special Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 
 
 

  

 

by the USACE can take up to 6 months after the initial inspection. The USACE has not yet scheduled their 
inspection with the District. 
 
Entry No. 8 – Adjourn 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:56 PM. 
 
MOTION: Early SECOND: Alcala AYES: Alcala, Early, Sulpizio Hull, Guerrero 
NOES: None ABSTAIN: None ABSENT: Orozco 
 
The agenda item passed 4-0, by roll call vote.  
 
 
 
 
        
Blake Johnson, General Manager/Secretary  
Reclamation District 900 
 



RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900 AGENDA REPORT 
MEETING DATE:   January 17, 2024 ITEM # 5 

SUBJECT: 

CONSIDERATION OF AUTHORIZATION TO CONDUCT A RECRUITMENT FOR DISTRICT 
ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER 

INITIATED OR REQUESTED BY: REPORT COORDINATED OR PREPARED BY: 
[  ] Counsel [ X ] Staff 

[  ] Other 

Blake Johnson, General Manager 

ATTACHMENT [ ]  Yes [ X ]  No [  ]  Information [  ]  Direction  [ X ]  
Action 

OBJECTIVE 
The objective of this report is to obtain the Reclamation District 900 (District) Board of Trustees (Board) approval 
to conduct an executive level recruitment to fill the vacant Assistant General Manager position. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Staff respectfully recommends that the Board: 

1. Authorize the General Manager to enter into an agreement with a recruitment firm, as needed, to assist
with the recruitment of an Assistant General Manager.

BACKGROUND 
The District has an open position for Assistant General Manager. The position has been unfilled since 2019, 
when the then-Assistant General Manager was promoted to General Manager. The District has attempted to fill 
the Assistant General Manager Position without the use of a recruitment firm but to date has been unsuccessful. 
As of the date of this report, through posting on recruiting websites (Indeed, LinkedIn), the District’s website, and 
word of mouth, the District has received approximately 60 resumes for the open Assistant General Manager 
position. Approximately 5 of these resumes meet the requirements of the position. Interviews of these 5 
candidates will begin in mid to late-January. In the event these efforts fail to fill the position, the District will have 
exhausted its in-house efforts to fill the position. The next step will be engaging a recruitment firm to fill the 
Assistant General Manager position.  

ANALYSIS 
The District has reviewed the qualifications and proposal from three recruitment firms that were previously 
responsive to a City of West Sacramento RFP. Each of the firms has provided a proposal for the District’s needs. 
Staff has reviewed the proposals, each of which include a $25,000.00 fee but vary in the particular services and 
methods used to find hire a qualified candidate. Based on staff review of the proposals, staff recommends that 
the District engage CPS HR Consulting for this assignment. The terms of the proposal and the services provided 
by CPS are superior to those of the other qualified proposals.  

Alternatives 
Staff recommends the Board approve and direct the General Manager to hire (if necessary after exhausting the 
in-house hiring efforts) CPS HR Consulting to assist with filing the vacant Assistant General Manager position 
as outlined in the Recommended Actions above.   

Coordination and Review 
This report was prepared in coordination with District counsel. 

Budget/Cost Impact 
Recruitment firms have a “standard” $25,000 fee for executive position recruitments. 

ATTACHMENT 
1. CPS HR Consulting Proposal for Executive Recruitment Services for Assistant General Manager
2. Koff & Associates Proposal for Executive Recruitment Services, Assistant General Manager
3. W3global Proposal



 

 

 

 

PROPOSAL 

 

Reclamation District 900 
Executive Recruitment Services for  
Assistant General Manager 
 

 

December 13, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Your Path to Performance 

 

SUBMITTED BY: 
MELISSA ASHER 
Sr. Practice Leader, Products and Services 
 
CPS HR Consulting 
2450 Del Paso Road, Suite 220 
Sacramento, CA 95834 
P: 916-471-3358 
masher@cpshr.us 
Tax ID: 68-0067209   

www.cpshr.us  
 

 

 



  

 

2450 Del Paso Road, Suite 220  Sacramento, CA  95834  www.cpshr.us   Tax ID: 68-0067209 
 

December 13, 2023 
 
 
Blake Johnson 
General Manager 
Reclamation District 900 
889 Drever Street 
West Sacramento, CA 95691  

Submitted via email to:  bjohnson@rd900.org 

Subject: Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Dear Mr. Johnson: 

CPS HR Consulting (CPS HR) is pleased to have the opportunity to submit a proposal to assist the 
Reclamation District 900 (District) with the recruitment of a new Assistant General Manager.  We 
are uniquely qualified to undertake this effort as we have vast experience in assisting public 
agencies with executive search, screening, and placement.   

We understand that each agency is unique, and our extensive experience allows us to tailor our 
process to specifically meet your needs.  Our work with local government agencies throughout 
the United States gives us an in-depth understanding of government operations, programs, and 
services.   

CPS HR offers a broad spectrum of human resource services while delivering personalized, 
results-oriented services, utilizing best practice methods of recruitment and selection strategies 
from our team of recruitment experts.  Each recruitment is an opportunity to shape and prepare 
your organization for the future.  We understand how important this transition is for you and are 
perfectly placed to assist you in this endeavor.  Once this project begins, we will work with the 
District to tailor our process to highlight this exciting opportunity and attract the best possible 
candidates.  

It is our commitment to work in partnership with your organization to a successful result.   

Thank you for the opportunity to be considered for this assignment.  Should you have questions 
or comments about the information presented in this proposal, please contact me at (916) 471-
3358 or via email at masher@cpshr.us. 

Sincerely, 

Melissa Asher 
Senior Practice Leader, Products and Services 



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | i  
 

 

Table of Contents 
About CPS HR Consulting ................................................................................................................ 1 

Recruitment Experts ................................................................................................................................. 2 

Our Approach .................................................................................................................................. 5 

Key Stakeholder Involvement ................................................................................................................... 5 

District’s Needs ......................................................................................................................................... 5 

Commitment to Communication .............................................................................................................. 5 

Aggressive, Proactive, and Robust Recruitment ....................................................................................... 5 

Diversity Outreach Process ....................................................................................................................... 6 

Methodology and Scope of Work ................................................................................................... 7 

Phase I - Develop Candidate Profile and Recruitment Strategy ............................................................... 7 

Phase II – Aggressive, Proactive, and Robust Recruitment....................................................................... 8 

Phase III – Selection ................................................................................................................................ 10 

Timeline......................................................................................................................................... 12 

Our Executive Recruiting Team ..................................................................................................... 13 

Team Biographies.................................................................................................................................... 13 

References .................................................................................................................................... 14 

Professional Fees and Guarantee ................................................................................................. 15 

Professional Services ............................................................................................................................... 15 

One-Year Service Guarantee ................................................................................................................... 15 

Appendix A: Sample Brochure ...................................................................................................... 16 

https://cpshr-my.sharepoint.com/personal/kmendez_cpshr_us/Documents/Desktop/_Proposals/_City%20of%20Ceres,%20CA/_Proposal%20Exec%20Search%20for%20City%20of%20Ceres_HR%20Dir%2001-2022.docx#_Toc93395036
https://cpshr-my.sharepoint.com/personal/kmendez_cpshr_us/Documents/Desktop/_Proposals/_City%20of%20Ceres,%20CA/_Proposal%20Exec%20Search%20for%20City%20of%20Ceres_HR%20Dir%2001-2022.docx#_Toc93395037
https://cpshr-my.sharepoint.com/personal/kmendez_cpshr_us/Documents/Desktop/_Proposals/_City%20of%20Ceres,%20CA/_Proposal%20Exec%20Search%20for%20City%20of%20Ceres_HR%20Dir%2001-2022.docx#_Toc93395038


Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 1  
 

 

About CPS HR Consulting 
CPS HR Consulting has been assisting organizations with their 
talent management needs for over 35 years.  We have unique 
expertise in delivering HR management and consulting services, 
employment testing, and assessment services to government 
agencies throughout North America.  Our core competency is its 
knowledge of and expertise in the public sector.   

CPS HR offers clients a comprehensive range of competitively priced services, all of which can be 
customized to meet your organization’s specific needs.  We are committed to supporting and 
developing strategic organizational leadership and human resource management in the public 
sector.  We offer expertise in the areas of organizational strategy, recruitment and selection, 
training and development, and organization and workforce management.  

CPS HR occupies a unique position among its competitors in the field of government consulting; 
as a Joint Powers Authority, whose charter mandates that we serve only public sector clients, we 
actively serve all government sectors including Federal, State, Local, Special Districts, Higher 
Education, and Non-Profit Organizations. This singular position provides CPS HR with a systemic 
and extensive understanding of how each government sector is inter-connected to each other 
and to their communities. That understanding, combined with our knowledge of public and 
private sector best practices, translates into meaningful and practical solutions for our clients’ 
operational and business needs. 

With more than 100 full-time employees as well as 200+ project consultants and technical 
experts nationwide, CPS HR delivers breakthrough solutions that help public sector organizations 
impact the communities they serve.  CPS HR has worked with more than 1,200 government and 
public/non-profit clients throughout the United States and Canada.   

Our headquarters are located in Sacramento, California.  We have regional offices in Texas, 
Colorado and Southern California. 

  

● ● ● 

OUR VISION: 

Enabling people to 
realize the promise of 

public service 

 



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 2  
 

 

Recruitment Experts 
CPS HR specializes in the recruitment and selection of key professionals for cities, counties, 
special districts, and non-profits.  Working in partnership with the governing body or selection 
team, we develop customized search strategies that focus on locating and recruiting qualified 
candidates who match the agency’s unique needs.  Our wealth of recruitment experience has 
been gained through more than 20 years of placing top and mid-level executives in public 
agencies throughout the United States. 

 Unmatched Recruitment Experience for Government Agencies.  CPS HR has extensive 
experience in recruiting executive-level professionals for public agencies across the 
United States.  As a public agency ourselves, we understand how to work with and within 
government.  Our understanding of public sector culture and policy uniquely sets us apart 
from our competitors. 

 Focus on Diversity Recruiting. In the past three years, 57% of the candidates placed by 
CPS HR are female, members of ethnic minorities or both. To continue this trend, CPS HR 
is constantly assessing the best methods for reaching the broadest network of possible 
candidates. To that end, we have just signed a contract with Zoom Info, a new sourcing 
platform, that includes a diversity sourcing filter. 

 Seasoned Executive Recruiters.  Our recruiters possess a high level of expertise in 
recruiting and placing executive-level professionals.  Our staff of experts includes an 
exceptional group of full-time employees as well as a full complement of subject matter 
experts, intermittent employees, and part-time employees with a variety of public and 
private sector experience. 

 Detailed Needs Assessments.  We conduct a detailed needs assessment to identify 1) 
future organizational direction; 2) challenges facing the position; 3) the working style 
and organizational climate; and 4) required core and job specific competencies as well 
as personal and professional characteristics. 

 Success Recruiting Non-Job Seeking Talent.  We recognize that the very best candidates 
for some types of positions may not be looking for a career change, therefore, our 
recruitment team takes a very aggressive approach to identify and recruit such 
candidates. 

 Vast Pool of Public Agency Contacts.  CPS HR maintains a database of candidates and an 
extensive network of external resources to leverage for executive-level positions.  We 
utilize our vast pool of public and non-profit contacts to deliver a strong list of competitive 
candidates who will be well prepared to assist you in the accomplishment of your specific 
mission and goals. 

 Satisfied Clients.  Our executive search client satisfaction rating averages 4.6 on a scale 
of 5.  While many companies talk about client satisfaction, how many measure the impact 
of that through assessing client satisfaction by distributing written surveys and tying the 
results of these surveys to their performance management system?  CPS HR Consulting 



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 3  
 

 

does.  A client satisfaction survey is sent at the end of every engagement requesting 
feedback on the quality of our staff, deliverables, and the overall consulting relationship.  

 Retention/Success Rate.  Our success rate is tied to the longevity of the candidates we 
place, currently more than 95% of our placements are still in their position after two 
years.  

 Partial list of recruitments.  Below is a brief listing of recent similar recruitments to show 
our experience with similar executive recruitments. 

Agency Titles Year Completed 
East Bay Regional Park District Assistant General Manager of 

Operations 
2023 

East Bay Regional Park District Assistant General Manager of 
Acquisition, Stewardship, and 
Development 

2023 

Selma-Kingsburg-Fowler County 
Sanitation District 

General Manager 
2023 

Sierra Lakes County Water District General Manager 2023 

Indian Wells Valley Water District General Manager 2023 

North of the River Recreation & Park 
District 

General Manager 
2023 

North San Joaquin Water Conservation 
District 

General Manager 
2023 

Central Contra Costa Sanitary District Deputy General Manager 2023 

California Prison Industry Authority 
(CalPIA) 

General Manager 
2022 

City of Grand Prairie, TX EPIC General Manager (Outreach) 2022 

Mid-Peninsula Water District General Manager 2022 

Reclamation District 900 General Manager 2022 

Kensington Police Protection & 
Community Services District 

General Manager 
2021 

East Bay Regional Park District General Manager 2021 

Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission 

General Counsel 
Executive Director 

2020 
2019 

Alderwood Water and Wastewater 
District  

General Manager  
2020 



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 4  
 

 

City of Redlands  Director of Municipal Utilities and 
Engineering 

2020 

Carmichael Water District General Manager 2020 

Hayward Area Recreation and Park 
District 

General Manager 
2020 

California Student Aid Commission Executive Director 2019 

San Mateo County Harbor District General Manager 2019 

Turlock Irrigation District General Manager 2019 

Valley of the Moon Water District General Manager 2019 

East Contra Costa Irrigation District General Manager 2019 

Las Gallinas Sanitation District General Manager 2018 

Diablo Water District  General Manager 2018 

San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency Executive Director 2018 

CA Coastal Commission Executive Director 2017 

Cosumnes Community Services District  General Manager 2017 

Rancho Murrieta Community Services 
District 

General Manager 
2017 

Kirkwood Meadows Public Utility District General Manager 2017 

Fresno Mosquito and Vector Control 
District 

General Manager 
2017 

 

  



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 5  
 

 

Our Approach 
Key Stakeholder Involvement 
The General Manager on behalf of the Reclamation District 900 must be intimately involved in 
the search for a new Assistant General Manager. Our approach assumes their direct participation 
in key phases of the search process.  At the discretion of the General Manager, other key 
stakeholders may also be invited to provide input for the development of the candidate profile.   

District’s Needs 
A critical first step in a successful executive search is for the General Manager to define the 
professional and personal qualities required of the Assistant General Manager.  CPS HR has 
developed a very effective process that will permit the General Manager to clarify the preferred 
future direction for the District; the specific challenges the District is likely to face in achieving 
this future direction; the working style and organizational climate the General Manager wishes 
to establish with the Assistant General Manager; and ultimately, the professional and personal 
qualities required of the Assistant General Manager. 

Commitment to Communication 
Throughout the recruitment process, we are strongly committed to keeping you fully informed 
of our progress.  We will collaborate with you to provide updates on the status of the recruitment 
via your preferred method of communication (phone conference, email, etc.).   

We place the highest level of importance on customer service and responding in a timely manner 
to all client and candidate inquiries.  Our previous clients and candidates have expressed a sincere 
appreciation for our level of service and responsiveness to the management of the recruitment 
process.  As a result, we have many long-term relationships with clients that have led to 
opportunities to assist them with multiple recruitments. 

CPS HR’s communication continues once you have selected the new Assistant General Manager.  
We will contact the General Manager and the newly appointed Assistant General Manager within 
six months of appointment to ensure an effective transition has occurred. 

Aggressive, Proactive, and Robust Recruitment 
We take an aggressive approach in identifying and recruiting the best available candidates.  There 
are those candidates who would gladly rise to the professional challenge and apply for this 
position; however, some of the best candidates are often not actively seeking a new position and 
may only consider a change once we present them with your opportunity.  Evoking the sense of 
vision and opportunity in qualified persons is among the responsibilities of CPS HR, and we pride 
ourselves in our efforts to reach the best available potential candidates.  We use advertisements, 
directly email the outreach brochure, post messages and connect with potential candidates on 
business media such as LinkedIn, and of course, pick up the phone and call qualified individuals 
and referral sources. 



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 6  
 

 

Diversity Outreach Process 
CPS HR strives to attract the most highly qualified, diverse candidate pool possible.  We are 
pleased that our diligent efforts have resulted in more than 57% of our executive level 
placements being people of color and/or female candidates within the past three years.   

We accomplished this by advertising with organizations like the National Forum for Black Public 
Administrators and the Local Government Hispanic Network in order to reach these specific 
population groups.  We also seek candidate referrals from local subject matter experts and the 
national leadership of groups like Women Leading Government.  By taking the time to directly 
contact these influential industry experts, we ensure that we capture the maximum number of 
distinguished candidates – particularly those who are well-known in their industries, but who 
may not be actively looking for a new job.  

The result is incredibly diverse candidate pools. Our clients have been quite pleased with our 
process and end results.   

 

  



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 7  
 

 

Methodology and Scope of Work 
Our proposed executive search process is designed to provide the District with the full range of 
services required to ensure the ultimate selection of a new Assistant General Manager uniquely 
suited to the District's needs.   

 

Phase I: Our consultant will meet with the General Manager to ascertain the District’s needs and 
ideal candidate attributes, to target our search efforts, and maximize candidate fit with the 
District.   

Phase II: The recruitment process is tailored to fit the District’s specific wants and needs, with 
targeted advertising, combined with contacts with qualified individuals from our extensive 
database. 

Phase III: The selection process is customized for the District.  CPS HR will work with   the General 
Manager to determine the process best suited to the Reclamation District 900. 

 
The first step in this engagement is a thorough review of the District’s needs, culture and goals; 
the executive search process; and the schedule.  CPS HR is prepared to meet with key 
stakeholders to obtain input in developing the ideal candidate profile and to assist us in 
understanding key issues and challenges that will face a new Assistant General Manager.  
Activities will include: 

 Identifying key priorities for the new Assistant General Manager and the conditions and 
challenges likely to be encountered in achieving these priorities. 

 Describing the type of working relationship the General Manager wishes to establish with 
the Assistant General Manager. 

Develop 
Candidate 
Profile and 

Recruitment 
Strategy

Phase I Aggressive, 
Proactive, 

and Robust
Recruitment

Phase II

Selection

Phase III

Phase I - Develop Candidate Profile and Recruitment 
Strategy 

Task 1 - Review and Finalize Executive Search Process and Schedule 
Task 2 - Key Stakeholder Meetings 
Task 3 - Candidate Profile and Recruitment Strategy Development 
Task 4 – Develop Recruitment Brochure  



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 8  
 

 

 Generating lists of specific competencies, experiences, and personal attributes needed by 
the new Assistant General Manager in light of the discussions above. 

 Discussing recruitment and selection strategies for the General Manager’s consideration 
to best produce the intended results.   

CPS HR will provide a summary to the District stemming from these activities as an additional 
source of information for developing the candidate profile and selection criteria.   

Following the completion of the workshop session, CPS HR will work with a professional graphic 
artist to design a recruitment brochure and present it to the District for review.  Please refer to 
Appendix A for a sample brochure.  Additional brochure examples are available on our website 
at www.cpshr.us/recruitment-solutions/executive-search.   

 
The recruitment process is tailored to fit the District’s specific wants and needs, with targeted 
advertising, combined with personal contacts with qualified individuals from our extensive 
database. 

CPS HR will prepare, submit for your approval, and publish advertisements on professional and 
affiliate websites to attract candidates on a nationwide, regional, local or targeted basis based 
on the recruitment strategy.  Examples may include: 

Advertising Sources & Associations 

• District’s website 
• Jobs Available 
• Public CEO 
• LinkedIn 
• League of California Cities  
• Governmentjobs.com 
• Society of Women Engineers 
• Water District Jobs 
• Water Environment Federation 

• CPS HR website 
• Municipal Management Association Northern 

California/Southern California 
• Brown & Caldwell Water Jobs 
• Assoc. of CA Water Agencies 
• American Water Works 
• American Public Works Assoc.  
• National Association of Clean Water Agencies 

As a consulting firm that interacts with hundreds of public sector executives during engagements, 
we have a cadre of individuals who we inform of recruitments, both to increase the visibility of 

Phase II – Aggressive, Proactive, and Robust 
Recruitment 

Task 1 – Place Advertisements 
Task 2 - Identify and Contact Potential Candidates 
Task 3 – Resume Review and Screening Interviews 
Task 4 – General Manager Selects Finalists 

http://www.cpshr.us/recruitment-solutions/executive-search


Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 9  
 

 

the opening and to attract appropriate individuals who fit the special needs of our client.  
Communication with these professionals ensures that an accurate picture of the requirements 
of the job is apparent and proliferated throughout their professional networks.   

CPS HR is focused on reaching a diverse candidate pool and would recommend 
publications/websites that are targeted to minority and female candidates.  In addition to placing 
ads on websites aimed at minority candidates, we will contact leaders within appropriate 
associations to gain their insight and referrals of possible candidates. 

Within the past three years, more than 57% of our executive level placements have been 
minority and/or female candidates. 

CPS HR will prepare an email distribution list containing prospective candidates and referral 
sources.  These individuals will receive a link to the Assistant General Manager brochure along 
with a personal invitation to contact CPS HR should they have any questions about the position. 

CPS HR maintains a comprehensive, up-to-date database of industry leaders and experienced 
professionals; however, we do not rely solely upon our current database.  We also conduct 
research to target individuals relevant to your specific needs and expectations to ensure that we 
are thorough in our efforts to market this position to the appropriate audience and to garner a 
diverse and quality pool of candidates.   

We will: 

 Convey a strong sense of the purpose and strategy of the District.  For many talented 
individuals, understanding these aspects is one of the key motivators to compete in such 
an environment. 

 Provide guidance and resources to candidates regarding the area’s cost of living, mean 
and median housing prices, higher education opportunities, K-12 education information, 
and other aspects of interest to those who are considering relocating to the area. 

 Actively seek highly qualified candidates who may be attracted by the prospect of 
collaboration with other departments, providing exceptional leadership to the District or 
continuing to ensure the public confidence in the integrity of the District. 

CPS HR will directly receive and initially screen all resumes.  This screening process is specifically 
designed to assess the personal and professional attributes the District is seeking and will include 
a thorough review of each candidate's resume, and if applicable, supplemental questionnaire 
responses and other supporting materials.  CPS HR will personally speak to selected candidates 
during a preliminary screening interview and will spend extensive time ascertaining each 
candidate’s long-term career goals and reasons why the candidate is seeking this opportunity, as 
well as gaining a solid understanding of the candidate’s technical competence and management 
philosophy.  We will gather data on any other unique aspects specific to this recruitment based 
upon the candidate profile, as well as conduct internet research on each candidate interviewed. 



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 10  
 

 

CPS HR will prepare a written report that summarizes the results of the recruitment process and 
recommends candidates for further consideration by the General Manager.  Typically, the report 
will recommend five to eight highly qualified candidates and will include resumes and a profile 
on each interviewee's background.  CPS HR will meet with the General Manager to review this 
report and to assist them in selecting a group of finalists for further evaluation. 

 
CPS HR will design a draft selection process based on information gathered in Phase I.  We will 
meet with the District to review this process and discuss the District’s preferred approach in 
assessing the final candidates.  The selection process will typically include an in-depth interview 
with each candidate but may also include other selection assessments such as an oral 
presentation, preparation of written materials, and/or problem-solving exercises.   

We will coordinate all aspects of the selection process for the District. This includes preparing 
appropriate materials such as interview questions, evaluation manuals, and other assessment 
exercises; facilitating the interviews; assisting the District with deliberation of the results; and 
contacting both successful and unsuccessful candidates. 

Following the completion of the selection process, CPS HR will be available to complete the 
following components: 

 Arrange Follow-up Interviews/Final Assessment Process: Should the District wish to 
arrange follow-up interviews and/or conduct a final assessment in order to make a 
selection, CPS HR will coordinate this effort. 

 Conduct In-Depth Reference Checks: The in-depth reference checks are a comprehensive 
360-degree evaluation process whereby we speak with current and previous supervisors, 
peers, and direct reports.  (It is our policy to not contact current supervisors until a job 
offer is made, contingent upon that reference being successfully completed, so as not to 
jeopardize the candidates’ current employment situation.)  Candidates are requested to 
provide a minimum of five references.  CPS HR is able to ascertain significant, detailed 
information from reference sources due to our commitment to each individual of 
confidentiality, which leads to a willingness to have an open and candid discussion and 
results in the best appointment for the District.  A written (anonymous) summary of the 
reference checks is provided to the District. 

 

Phase III – Selection 
Task 1 - Design Selection Process 
Task 2 - Administer Selection Process 
Task 3 – Final Preparation for Appointment  
Task 4 – Contract Negotiation (if requested) 



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 11  
 

 

 Conduct Background Checks: Upon a conditional job offer, we will arrange for a 
background check of a candidate’s records on driving, criminal and civil court, credit 
history, education, published news, and other sensitive items.  Should any negative or 
questionable content appear during these checks, CPS HR will have a thorough discussion 
with the finalist(s) and will present a full picture of the situation to the District for further 
review. 

 Contract Negotiation (if requested): Successful negotiations are critically important, and 
we are available to serve as your representative in this process.  With our expertise, we 
can advise you regarding current approaches to various components of an employment 
package.  We can represent your interests with regards to salary, benefits, employment 
agreements, housing, relocation, and other aspects, with the ultimate goal of securing 
your chosen candidate.  

  



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 12  
 

 

Timeline  
The project team CPS HR has selected is prepared to begin work upon receipt of a fully-executed 
contractual agreement.  All search activities up to and including the selection of a new Assistant 
General Manager can be completed in 12 to 14 weeks following the kick-off meeting.  The precise 
schedule will depend on the placement of advertising on appropriate professional and affiliate 
websites, and the ability to schedule, as quickly as possible, the initial meeting.  A proposed 
schedule of major milestones is presented below. 

Task Name Month 1 Month 2 Month 3 Month 4 

Weeks 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

Initial Meeting     

Draft Brochure             

Brochure Approved/ 
Printed & Place Ads  

             

Aggressive Recruiting       

Final Filing Date               

Preliminary Screening                               

Present Leading 
Candidates  

     

Semi-finalist Interviews                     

Reference/        
Background Checks  

                                          

Final Interviews            

Appointment         

Weeks 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

 

  



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 13  
 

 

Our Executive Recruiting Team  
CPS HR has assembled a strong project team with each member possessing extensive recruiting 
experience and a direct, in-depth understanding of local government.  Our executive recruitment 
team will work collectively to fulfill the District’s needs in a timely and effective manner.  Mr. 
David Niemeyer will be your dedicated project manager and primary contact.  We are committed 
to providing each of our clients the same level of service excellence, and we take great care not 
to take on more work than this commitment allows.  We will not utilize subcontractors for these 
services.   No staff members will be removed or replaced without the prior written concurrence 
of the District.   

Role/Project Assignment Name Phone Email 

Executive Recruiter David Niemeyer (916) 263-1401  dniemeyer@cpshr.us 

Project Manager Biography 
David J. Niemeyer, Executive Recruiter 

David Niemeyer brings 38 years of local government management experience including 
managing 7 communities in the suburban Chicago area. He brings an extensive practitioner’s 
experience in government services to the CPS HR Executive Recruitment team through his roles 
as Village Manager, City Manager, Village Administrator, and City Administrator/Assistant to the 
Mayor all in the state of Illinois.  Human resources and senior executive recruitment are areas 
that he excels in and thoroughly enjoys. 

Mr. Niemeyer led recruitments for over 15 department head vacancies as well as numerous other 
management positions.  This included preparing recruitment profiles and brochures, screening 
candidates and creating a list of top candidates for the elected officials, developing interview 
questions, managing assessment centers, conducting background checks, and negotiating 
employment offers.  His most recent large recruitment was for the police chief of Tinley Park 
which included a day long assessment center. 

David has a reputation as an ethical, engaged, collaborative leader, who has excellent 
communication and listening skills. He has a calm, focused disposition and has worked with vocal 
and diverse elected boards and residents to develop a consensus on controversial issues.   

Additionally, he has worked in a variety of different communities in terms of wealth, 
demographic, political stability, culture and differing goals. A candidate that is successful in one 
community may not be successful in other, and so it is important that a recruiter understands 
the importance of candidate fit in an organization. Mr. Niemeyer’s experience in diverse 
communities will help in screening candidates that are a good match for an organization. 
 



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 14  
 

 

References 
Provided below is a partial list of clients we have recently worked with in providing similar 
executive recruitment services. We are confident that these public-sector clients will tout our 
responsiveness and ability to successfully place candidates that were a good fit for their 
organization’s needs.  

CLIENT/POSITIONS CONTACT(S) 

Selma-Kingsburg-Fowler County 
11301 E. Conejo Ave. 
Kingsburg, CA 93631 
 
 
General Manager (2023) 

Hilda Montoy, Attorney 
hildac@montoylaw.com 

Sierra Lakes County Water District 
7300 Short Road 
Soda Springs, CA 95728 
 
General Manager (2023) 

Jennifer Jackson, Board Member 
(415) 378-4074 
jjackson@slcwd.org 

Indian Wells Valley Water District 
500 W. Ridgecrest Blvd 
Ridgecrest, CA 93555 

General Manager (2022) 

Jim Worth, District Counsel 
 (661) 322-4417 
jim@mhwslegal.com 



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 15  
 

 

Professional Fees and Guarantee 
Professional Services 
Our professional fixed fee covers all CPS HR services and deliverables associated with Phases I, 
II, and III of the recruitment process.  We are also providing the fees associated with Partial 
(Phase I and II only) and Outreach only services.  Travel expenses for candidates who are invited 
forward in the interview process are not included.  

 
Professional Fixed Fees* 

Professional Services for Full Recruitment  $25,000 
*Professional fees would be billed and paid monthly.   

 

One-Year Service Guarantee 
If the employment of the candidate selected and appointed by the District as a result of a full 
executive recruitment (Phases I, II, and III) comes to an end before the completion of the first 
year of service, CPS HR will provide the District with professional services to appoint a 
replacement.  Professional consulting services will be provided at no cost.  The District would be 
responsible only for expenses such as re-advertising, consultant travel, additional background 
checks, etc.  This guarantee does not apply to situations in which the successful candidate is 
promoted or re-assigned within the organization during the one-year period.  Additionally, 
should the initial recruitment efforts not result in a successful appointment, CPS HR will extend 
the aggressive recruiting efforts and screen qualified candidates until an offer is made and 
accepted.  CPS HR does not provide a guarantee for candidates placed as a result of a partial 
recruitment effort. 

 
 
 
 

We thank you for your consideration of our proposal.  We are committed to 
providing high quality and expert solutions and look forward to partnering with 

the Reclamation District 900 in this important endeavor. 



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 16  
 

 

Appendix A: Sample Brochure 

 



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 17  
 

 

 

 



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 18  
 

 

 

 



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 19  
 

 

 

 



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 20  
 

 

 

 



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 21  
 

 

 



Proposal to Reclamation District 900  
Executive Recruitment for Assistant General Manager 

Page | 22  
 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 
Submittal date: December 8, 2023 

 
Submitted by: 

Koff & Associates 
2835 Seventh Street 
Berkeley, CA 94710 

 
Frank Rojas 

Recruitment Manager 
Frank_Rojas@ajg.com 

510.495.0448 
KoffAssociates.com 

EXECUTIVE RECRUITMENT SERVICES 
ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER 
RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900 

mailto:Frank_Rojas@ajg.com


   
 

  
RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900  

 

December 8, 2023 

Blake Johnson, General Manager 
Reclamation District 900 
889 Drever Street, 
West Sacramento CA, 95691 

Dear Mr. Johnson, 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit our proposal to assist Reclamation District 900 with Executive 
Recruitment services. We are excited about the possibility of developing this partnership and supporting the 
District with the search for its next Assistant General Manager. Koff & Associates (K&A), a Gallagher company, 
is uniquely qualified based on over 38 years of assisting public agencies with finding and placing candidates 
dedicated to public service.  

Our unique selling proposition lies in K&A’s experience supporting public sector clients in California and 
throughout the USA. Through our investment in modern recruitment technology, we offer forward-thinking 
services that not only provide advanced extensive sourcing and outreach but allow us to tell the story of each 
project through easy-to-understand data. 

Conducting countless executive search efforts has made K&A an expert in identifying, targeting, recruiting, and 
successfully placing women and minority candidates in many of our recruitments. Diversity recruiting is an area 
of focus, and our firm has a vast pool of resources at our fingertips to provide outreach on an industry-wide 
basis to the public and private sector for qualified candidates nationwide. We pride ourselves on transparency, 
flexibility, and quality work. 

As K&A’s Recruitment Manager, I am available to answer questions about this proposal, as well as our team and 
recruitment services. You can reach me at (510) 495-0448 or Frank_Rojas@ajg.com. 

Sincerely, 

 
Frank Rojas 
Recruitment Manager 

mailto:Frank_Rojas@ajg.com


   
 

 
2835 Seventh Street, Berkeley, California 94710 | 510.658.5633 | KoffAssociates.com 

Table of Contents 
Business Information         1 

 

Experience and Qualifications       1 

 

Recent Successful Recruitments       2 

 

Project Team          5 

 

Project Approach / Methodology      8 

 

References          12 

 

Pricing Proposal          13 

 

Other: Professional Services Agreement Acknowledgement 14 

 

Signature Page          15 

 

Attachment: Sample Brochure 
 



   
 

  
RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900  

 1 

BUSINESS INFORMATION  
Koff & Associates (“K&A”) is a full spectrum, public-sector human resources and recruiting services firm founded 
by Gail Koff in 1984 and has been assisting cities, counties, special districts, other public agencies, and non-profit 
organizations. 

As of April 30, 2021, we merged with Arthur J. Gallagher and are now officially a Gallagher Division. Our 
headquarters are in Berkeley, CA, and we have satellite offices in Southern California, the Central Valley, the 
Sacramento Region, and the Western US Region. GALLAGHER BENEFIT SERVICES, INC. is our legal name. It is a 
Delaware company, and the FEIN is 36-4291971. 

EXPERIENCE AND QUALIFICATIONS 
With nearly 40 years of HR experience, Koff & Associates knows public sector employment inside and out. We 
are familiar with public sector organizational structures, agency missions, operational and budgetary 
requirements, and staffing expectations. Our team is ready to support you at any level you wish – providing 
sourcing expertise, full-cycle recruitment at the start of your search through the start date of your newest 
employee, and everything in between. 

 
Our long list of clients indicates our firm’s reputation as a quality organization that produces comprehensive, 
sound, and cost-effective results. K&A is “hands on” and responsive with the ability and expertise to identify 
the ideal candidate(s) for Reclamation District 900. 
K&A uses its vast network to leverage recommendations and referrals of past clients in combination with 
modern sourcing techniques and technology to build the best candidate pools in the market. We are a team of 
true recruiters with over 60 years of combined experience. Our work speaks for itself, and our primary goal is 
to provide professional and technical consulting assistance with integrity, honesty, and a commitment to 
excellence. 

  

K&A provides personal attention to and creates long-term relationships with 
our clients. Because we care about and understand your organization’s 

people, culture, leadership, and unique needs, we identify highly qualified 
candidates to support your goals.

We build enduring 
relationships

With our focus on inclusion, networking, and advertising with minority-based 
associations, we source source top talent and our placements reflect the 

Agencies we serve.
We value strength in 

diversity

K&A identifies candidates which traditional recruiting strategies may miss. 
We leverage innovative sourcing methodologies and technologies for a robust 

and advanced sourcing strategy that will attract hard to find passive job 
seekers.

We leverage innovative 
search technology



   
 

  
RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900  

 2 

RECENT SUCCESSFUL RECRUITMENTS 
The following is a partial list of recent executive recruitments conducted by the K&A recruitment team: 

Agency Title Year Completed 

Contra Costa Water 
District 

Assistant General Manager (Engineering & Construction), Finance 
Director, Assistant General Manager (Water Resources, Operations, & 
Maintenance) 

2023 – 2022 

South Tahoe Public 
Utilities District General Manager 2023 

Valley Sanitary District General Manager 2023 
West Valley 
Water District General Manager, Assistant General Manager 2023 

East Valley 
Water District General Manager/Chief Executive Officer 2022 

Los Angeles County 
Vector Control District General Manager 2022 

Stinson Beach Co. 
Water District General Manager 2022 

City of Avalon Public Works Director 2023 

City of Berkeley 
Information Technology Director, Public Works Director, Deputy City 
Attorney (2), Director of Health, Housing and Community Services, 
Operations Manager (2), Accounting Manager 

2023 – 2020 

City of Carson Director of Finance, Public Works Operations Manager, Community 
Services Director, City Manager, Public Works Director 2023 – 2019 

City of East Palo Alto City Manager, Chief of Police 2023 

City of Gilroy Utilities Director, Public Works Director, City Engineer/Transportation 
Engineer, Fire Division Chief 2023 

City of Long Beach Data Center Officer 2023 

City of Los Altos Housing Manager 2023 

City of Menlo Park Assistant Administrative Services Director (Finance), Human Resources 
Manager 2023 

City of Modesto Engineering Division Manager – Utilities 2023 

City of Ontario Investments & Treasury Officer, Accounting Manager, Assistant 
Community Development Director 2023 – 2022 

City of Oxnard 

Library Manager, City Traffic Engineer, Chief Financial Officer, Budget 
Manager, Public Works Director, Asst. Public Works Dir. (2), Purchasing 
Manager, Controller, Communications & Marketing Manager, Assistant 
City Attorney, Planning & Environmental Manager, Assistant Director of 
Housing Programs, Environmental Waste Division Manager 

2023 – 2017 

City of Palm Springs Fire Chief, City Manager 2023 



   
 

  
RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900  

 3 

City of Pasadena Director of Library & Information Services, Chief of Police, Controller, 
Director of Parks, Recreation and Community Services 2023 – 2022 

City of Patterson Director of Recreation & Community Services, Finance Director 2023 – 2022 

City of Redlands Director of Human Resources 2023 

City of Rialto Director of Community Development, Director of Engineering Services 2023 – 2022 

City of Richmond Director of Finance 2023 

City of Riverside DEI (Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion) Officer, Debt & Treasury Manager, 
Budget Manager 2023 – 2022 

City of Salinas Finance Director, City Manager, Chief of Police, Assistant Finance Dir. 2023 – 2021 

City of San Bernardino 
City Manager, Director of Public Works, Chief of Police, Director of 
Human Resources, Deputy Director of Human Resources (Risk), Director 
of Finance, Director of Animal Services 

2023 – 2019 

City of Sanger City Manager 2023 

City of Santa Fe Springs City Manager 2023 

City of Santa Monica Director of Transportation, City Engineer 2023 

City of Scottsdale, AZ Economic Development Director 2023 

City of Seaside Assistant Public Works Director 2023 

City of Soledad City Manager 2023 

City of Visalia Administrative Services Director 2023 

City of Vista Assistant City Manager, Director of Community Development, Director 
of Engineering, Fire Chief 

2023 

City of West Hollywood Economic Development Director 2023 

Coachella Valley Water 
District Director of Environmental Services 2023 

County of Riverside 
Department Public Information Officer I, County Counsel, DEI (Diversity, 
Equity, and Inclusion) Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Animal Services 
Director 

2023 – 2020 

East Bay Regional 
Park District 

Chief Information Officer, Chief of Design & Construction, Chief of 
Interpretive & Recreation Services 2023 

North County Transit 
District Chief Executive Officer, Chief People Officer 2023 

Orange County 
Mosquito & Vector 
Control District 

Human Resources Directo 2023 

Yolo Transportation 
District Director of Finance & Administration 2023 

CALAFCO Executive Director 2022 



   
 

  
RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900  

 4 

City of Calexico City Manager, Chief of Police 2022 
City of Cherry 
Hills Village, CO Chief of Police 2022 

City of Lawndale Director of Finance / City Treasurer 2022 

City of Leavenworth City Administrator 2022 

City of Long Beach City Treasurer 2022 

City of Millbrae Community Development Director, Public Works Director, Finance 
Director 2022 – 2020 

City of Oceanside City Manager 2022 

City of Oroville Chief of Police 2022 

City of San Jose Assistant CIO, Chief Information Officer 2022 

City of Signal Hill City Manager 2022 

City of Tracy  City Attorney 2022 
City of Woodland Park, 
CO Chief of Police 2022 

County of Stanislaus Director of Animal Services 2022 

Metro Parks Tacoma Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 2022 

San Mateo County 
Transportation 
Authority 

Deputy Director, Transportation Authority; Executive Officer for Civil 
Rights, Employee & Labor Relations, and Human Resources; District 
Surveyor, Real Estate 

2022 – 2021 

Santa Barbara MTD Director of Finance and Administration, Director of HR and Risk 2022 

City of Chico Public Works Director 2021 

City of Colton Public Works & Utility Services Director 2021 

City of Glendale City Manager 2021 

City of San Diego Director of Transportation 2021 

County of Santa Clara Planning Services Manager/Deputy Director 2021 

First 5 Alameda County Human Resources Director 2021 

Humboldt Waste 
Management Auth. Executive Director 2021 

County of Tulare Director of Human Resources & Development, Director of Information & 
Communications Technology 2021 – 2020 

Orange County 
Social Services Agency Chief Deputy Director, Division Director (3) 2021 – 2019 

Tahoe RPA Director of Human Resources & Organizational Development 2021 

  



   
 

  
RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900  

 5 

PROJECT TEAM 
Frank Rojas  
Recruitment Manager  

Frank brings more than thirty (35) years of recruiting experience from the highly competitive direct placement 
and contracts labor industries and the corporate environment. He has significant experience placing corporate 
leaders, executive, professional, and technical staff, including individual contributors for the government 
sector, non-profits, aerospace, architectural and engineering, information technology, petroleum and 
chemical, energy, power, civil/structural, transportation, and private industry. 

Frank began his career in Contract Labor. Over the next 30+ years, he launched seven start-up offices in 
several states and locations, providing direct placement and contract support to hundreds of clients in virtually 
all industries and levels of talent. He continued his career in the non-profit environment, managing and 
building talent acquisition support during significant growth periods. Having been a speaker at several 
networking and career coaching venues, Frank believes in utilizing traditional recruiting methodology with 
social media. 

In addition to recently completing recruitments for the City of Pasadena, County of Riverside, West Valley 
Water District, City of Millbrae, and Contra Costa Water District, recent successful efforts include positions of 
City Manager, Finance Director, County Executive Officer, Director of Human Resources & Development, City 
Treasurer, DEI Officer, Chief of Police, and Director-level hires for Information Technology, Social Services, 
Public Works, Economic Development, Community Services, Animal Services, and Division/Site General 
Managers. 

Frank has been named in the top 1% viewed profiles on LinkedIn and has established a strong client and 
customer base through trust, effective recruiting, relationship building, and teamwork. 

Joshua Boudreaux 
Recruiting Supervisor 

Joshua has over nine (9) years of public sector Human Resources experience. 

He began his public sector journey as a labor representative with the Orange County Employees Association 
representing employees in grievances, investigations, meet and confers, interactive processes, arbitrations, 
and negotiations. He transitioned into the HR world at the City of Anaheim where he led classification and 
compensation projects. At the Orange County Fire Authority, he worked closely with Battalion and Division 
Chiefs on projects such as classification and compensation, employee relations, and recruitment. 

Prior to joining K&A, Joshua served as an Administrative Manager for the County of Orange where he handled 
employee grievances, conducted investigations, and represented the County on meet and confer items. He 
served as the President of the Orange County Human Resources Consortium in 2017-2018. Since joining K&A, 
Joshua partners his classification and compensation experience, marketing skills, and recruitment experience 
to bring a full-service experience to all clients. He currently manages full-cycle recruitments for California 
public sector agencies including, cities, counties, and special districts. He provides supervisory oversight for 
technical, professional, and management recruitments. 



   
 

  
RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900  

 6 

Joshua earned his B.S. in Political Science with a concentration in American Politics from the University of 
California, Los Angeles; his Master’s in Public Administration from Chapman University (Brandman); and a 
Master’s Certificate in Human Resources with emphasis in Labor Relations from Cornell University. 

Current & Previous Recruitments: City of Seaside – Associate Engineer, Senior Engineer; City of Fairfield – Fire 
Inspector I/II; Valley Water District – Environmental Planner/Regulatory Specialist, Senior Engineering 
Technician, Sr. Information Systems Technician; County of Sonoma – Real Estate Manager; Alameda County 
Water District – Director of Engineering; Dublin San Ramon – Waste Water Treatment Superintendent, 
Electrician II; City of Long Beach – Jail Administrator, Medical Director, Occupational Health Services Manager; 
Port of Oakland – Maintenance Manager; City of Gilroy – Fleet Superintendent; Big Bear Lake – Senior 
Accountant; City of Richmond – Budget Administrator, Accounting Manager; Monterey One Water – SCADA 
Analyst; City of Richmond – Deputy Director of Community Services: Employment and Training. 

Amanda Kreller 
Executive Recruiter 

Amanda brings over twenty (20) years of diverse expertise spanning the public and private sectors with a 
strong focus on executive search, recruitment process outsourcing, and corporate environments. Throughout 
her career, she has excelled in identifying and connecting outstanding individuals across all organizational 
levels, ranging from corporate leaders and executives to professionals, technical experts, and individual 
contributors. Amanda's unwavering dedication to fostering diversity, equity, and inclusion (DE&I) practices is 
evident in her commitment to sourcing the most exceptional talent for every unique context.  

Amanda's educational background includes a Bachelor of Arts (BA) degree in Marketing and Media Studies 
from San Diego State University, as well as a Master in Education (MEd) in Elementary Education. She is a 
certified teacher who began her professional journey in the public school system, teaching grades EC-5. Her 
passion for education extended to serving as a board member for local private schools.  

Drawing on her diverse experiences, Amanda smoothly transitioned into recruiting for government agencies 
such as City of Los Angeles, City of San Diego, City of Long Beach, City of Laguna Beach  as well as companies 
across a range of industries, including biotechnology, environmental, healthcare, technology, legal, finance, 
human resources, and marketing. 

Amanda has honed her skills in providing innovative solutions and support in areas such as organizational 
development and management, talent engagement and placement, and process improvement strategies. Her 
multifaceted background equips her with a unique perspective and enables her to offer valuable insights and 
guidance in various aspects of talent acquisition and organizational growth.  
Chelsea Freeman 
Executive Recruiter 

Chelsea’s professional qualifications include seven years of experience working in the public sector, mostly 
with the California State University system.  Chelsea also has nine years working in the private sector in 
manufacturing.  In her role as Classification, Compensation and HR Operations Manager, she was responsible 
for developing and implementing a compensation philosophy for staff and faculty, as well as implementing 
process improvement efforts within the HR operations.  She provided ongoing consultation to Managers 



   
 

  
RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900  

 7 

relating to recruiting, best practices in hiring which included Diversity and Inclusion training, and properly 
classifying and compensating employees. 

Chelsea earned her B.A. degree in Communications from Sonoma State University. 

Current & Previous Recruitments: City of Fairfield- Senior Information Technology Analyst; Coachella Valley 
Water District- Associate Civil Engineer, Assistant Civil Engineer; City of Pittsburg- Assistant City Engineer; South 
Tahoe Public Utility District- Senior Engineer, Associate Engineer; City of Berkeley- Accounting Manager; City of 
Long Beach-Data Center Officer; City of Richmond- Director of Finance, Coachella Valley Water District- 
Environmental Services Director. 

Peter Smith 
Executive Recruiter 

Pete brings 18 years of recruiting experience to the table. He has recruited in the public and private sectors in 
searches spanning nearly every discipline. Examples of his expertise include: executive, director, and 
professional roles in the public sector; accounting, finance, and treasury; C-Suite positions; private sector 
director and manager roles generally; and professional roles including legal, accounting/CPA, and healthcare. 
Further, he has experience in all technical roles, including transportation and public works. 

Pete has a Bachelor’s of Science in Business Administration with an emphasis in International Business and has 
started and led several recruiting offices in California. 

Pete’s success as a recruiter is rooted in values, hard work, and determination. He views his role towards 
candidates as one as a trusted advisor. It is a matter of helping the candidate understand the realities of the 
industry and market and explaining in detail what the client/employer is looking for, while maintaining 
appropriate levels of discretion towards all. Regarding clients, a perspective of complete candor is essential. A 
consultative approach is required whereby the client is assisted in understanding how their needs intersect 
with the candidate's perspective. Pete employs state-of-art technology in recruiting, including AI tools, but 
combines this with traditional, high-touch efforts. 

Pete prides himself on universal success in unearthing fantastic candidates. His secret is diligence tempered by 
constant re-evaluation of metrics and results. There is no such thing as a failed search, only a failure of 
awareness and creativity. 

Ember Plummer 
Recruitment Coordinator/Project Support 

Ember supports the Koff & Associates team as a Recruiting Coordinator/Project Support. Since joining K&A, 
they have helped to develop efficient processes to streamline recruiting services. They support the recruiting 
team in a broad range of administrative needs and in preparing reports and documentation for clients. 

Ember earned their B.A. in English Language & Literature and World Literature from Smith College in 
Northampton, MA.  



   
 

  
RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900  

 8 

PROJECT APPROACH/METHODOLOGY 
Our philosophy ensures thorough, thoughtful, and strategic sourcing, evaluation, selection, and vetting of 
candidates. We reach out directly to potential candidates, referral sources, professional associations, and user 
groups, etc. by using business media, outreach emails, general advertising, and most importantly picking up 
the phone and actively calling passive applicants. This strategy also includes focused advertising on websites 
and in publications specific to women and minority candidates. 

K&A will provide weekly progress reports to the District and participate in conference calls and onsite 
meetings as requested.  

We are responsible for ensuring compliance, adhering to, and maintaining all legally mandated documentation 
throughout the process.  

 

  

Step 1: Ideal 
Candidate Profile

Step 2: Five 
Week Window of 
Application and 

Sourcing

Step 3: 
Recommendation 

of Candidates

Step 4: Interview 
Facilitation

Step 5: 
Background, 

References, and 
Offer



   
 

  
RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900  

 9 

Step 1: Ideal Candidate Profile 
Developing the profile for the ideal job candidate for the position is crucial for a successful search process. 

We will coordinate with the District in identifying and developing: 

 The various organizational needs, vision, mission, goals, strengths, challenges, opportunities, and 
culture of the organization; 

 Position competency requirements, i.e., knowledge, skills, and abilities; 
 Personal and professional attributes required of and priorities for the new incumbent;  
 Type of working relationship senior leadership desire with the new incumbent;  
 Advertising strategies in conjunction with a national and/or regional outreach campaign; 
 Compensation levels; and 
 Schedule of deliverables from K&A. 

After meeting(s) with the District, there will be a consensus of the key qualifications and characteristics of the 
position and the process, action plan, and timetable to be utilized for the recruitment process. 

Brochure Design & Posting 

Following the development of the candidate profile, an eye-catching recruitment brochure will be professionally 
produced in coordination with the District’s feedback. The brochure will highlight the strengths of Reclamation 
District 900 and the surrounding community. The brochure will feature the organizational structure and services 
of the District, its mission and goals, pertinent facts regarding the position, and necessary and desirable 
candidate qualifications. 

Step 2: Five Week Window of Application & Sourcing 

K&A can, at the request of the District, facilitate community surveys or community outreach forums to 
encourage feedback from residents. A report of resident comments will be provided to the District prior to 
first-round interviews. 

Our effort will include a variety of activities designed to build the best available candidate pool. Our techniques 
and methodologies allow us to source from extensive pools of potential candidates and referral sources.  

In coordination with the District, K&A will: 

 Identify prospects; 
 Provide each potential candidate with access to the recruitment brochure;  
 Capture interested candidates in our recruitment project database; and  
 Provide representative data to the District, including candidate documents, interview notes, and an 

outline of the recruitment process.   



   
 

  
RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900  

 10 

Step 3: Recommendation of Candidates 
K&A will provide the District with a report of the leading candidates to further narrow the pool to the most 
highly qualified and establish the best organizational fit of each potential finalist. This screening process is 
specifically designed to assess the personal and professional attributes the District has identified and will focus 
on each candidate’s ability, technical competency, and fit with the District’s values, culture, and needs. Our 
assessment will consist of: 

 Experience and qualifications; 
 Cultural fit based on our understanding of essential intangibles; 
 Clarity of any issues identified in the submitted documents; 
 Reasons for position interest, 
 The level of commitment to the position and the organization; and 
 Other issues, including salary requirements. 

Step 4: Interview Facilitation 
We will advise and develop interviewing strategies and a menu of questions that will help analyze candidates’ 
qualifications and management/work styles. We will facilitate all necessary communications with the District 
and candidates to ensure everyone is well prepared. 

Interview questions will elicit information about each candidate’s technical skill set, experience, leadership skills, 
adaptability, political astuteness, self-awareness, and other important aspects of the ideal candidate profile. 

Questions, evaluation tools, and additional materials will be assembled in intuitive and user-friendly interview 
packets. We will use evaluation criteria agreed to by the District. 

The Project Manager will coordinate interviews, interview schedules, and finalize the process. We will provide 
oversight during the panel interview process and facilitate a focused discussion with the District at the beginning 
and conclusion of the interviews to identify the most qualified candidate(s) for final interviews.  

Step 5: Background, References, and Offer 
K&A provides a thorough and quality reference and background check process for our clients. We start by calling 
candidates’ employment and professional references and having an in-depth discussion, covering their 
strongest business characteristics, work style, interpersonal skills, and position-specific knowledge. All 
references will be documented and presented in a concise, user-friendly manner. 

Background checks are conducted in coordination with a third-party firm to verify educational degrees and 
employment records and confirm clear driving records, criminal records, and financial history/credit. Reports 
can be tailored to clients’ needs upon request. Safety for clients and their communities is our priority, so rest 
assured that we, as well as our background contract firm, meet or exceed relevant reporting requirements. 

K&A can facilitate and lead the negotiations of the final terms and conditions of employment, such as the 
compensation package, benefits, and other perquisites (perks). We will notify all candidates not selected as 
finalists for the position.  



   
 

  
RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900  

 11 

Project Schedule 

The following is a typical schedule for conducting recruitment efforts. Search efforts for executive 
recruitments generally take twelve to fourteen (12-14) weeks to complete, allowing enough time for all steps 
of the process and client schedules. 

Weeks 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 
Step 1        
Step 2        
Step 3        
Step 4        
Step 5        

K&A Organizational Diversity Statement 
This statement reaffirms our commitment to affirmative action and providing equal employment opportunities to all 
employees and applicants for employment in accordance with equal opportunity and affirmative action laws. 

We affirm our personal and official support of these policies, which provide that K&A is committed to implementing 
the affirmative action policies, programs, and procedures included in this plan to ensure that employment practices 
are free from discrimination. Employment practices include but are not limited to the following: hiring, promotion, 
demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff, disciplinary action, termination, rates of pay or 
other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. We will provide reasonable 
accommodation to applicants and employees with disabilities.  



   
 

  
RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900  

 12 

REFERENCES 
We are proud of our past recruitment work with clients to successfully place candidates to meet their 
organization’s needs. 

Recruitment & Agency Contact 
City of Riverside 
 
DEI (Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion) Officer, Debt & Treasury 
Manager, Budget Manager 

Edward Enriquez, CFO 
(951) 826-5972 

EEnriquez@riverside.gov 
3900 Main St, 

Riverside, CA 92501 
City of Palm Springs 
 
Fire Chief, City Manager 

Stephanie George 
Director of Human Resources 

760.323.8217 
Stephanie.George@palmspringsca.gov 

3200 E. Tahquitz Canyon Way 
Palm Springs, CA 92262 

City of Pasadena 
 
Director of Library & Information Services, Chief of Police, 
Controller, Director of Parks Recreation and Community 
Services 

Tiffany Jacobs-Quinn, Human Resources Director 
(626) 744-4126 

tjocobsquinn@cityofpasadena.net 
100 Garfield Ave, 

Pasadena, CA 91101 
West Valley Water District 
 
General Manager 

Haydee M. Sainz 
Human Resources & Risk Manager 

(909) 820-3712 
hsainz@wvwd.org 

855 W. Baseline Rd. 
Rialto, CA 92377 

  

mailto:EEnriquez@riverside.gov
mailto:Stephanie.George@palmspringsca.gov
mailto:tjocobsquinn@cityofpasadena.net
mailto:hsainz@wvwd.org


   
 

  
RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900  

 13 

PRICING PROPOSAL 

 
• Assistant General Manager 

 
• Total not-to-exceed professional fee of $25,000, which includes all professional services and expenses, 

including brochure development and design, advertising, printing and shipping, associated consultant 
travel if required, and background. 

• Invoices will be billed monthly in four equal increments of $6,250. 

Note: Expenses do not include candidate travel. 

Optional: Recruitment Video 
In addition to the standard recruitment brochure, K&A can develop a Recruitment Video to better highlight the 
positive elements of the organization and community. These videos have proven to attract more job seekers and 
effectively expand the talent pool. Videos run approximately three-minutes in length and highlight the workplace 
environment, local landscape, and include interviews with selected staff.  This video is optional and costs $4,000. 

Placement Guarantee 
K&A is committed to recommending only the most qualified candidates who meet all the necessary 
requirements and qualifications and are also a cultural fit for the District. We proactively recruit for each search 
effort until a successful candidate is placed. 

Therefore, we promise to present to the District a selective pool of candidates that met or exceeded our 
standards during the thorough screening processes and have been identified as ideal matches for the position. 
Should the District disapprove of all final candidates or should none pass the final interview and reference check 
process, we will work to find a new slate of candidates at no added cost, with the possible exception of necessary 
advertising. 

In addition, for full recruitments for executive and mid-management positions, should the incumbent leave the 
position or be terminated from employment within 12 months of hire due to performance issues, we commit 
to conducting a one-time additional executive search to identify a replacement and only charge related 
expenses as described in the Pricing Proposal. 

Overall, K&A’s retention rate during the first 12 months of hire is robust and has been above 95% over the last 
several years. 

  



   
 

  
RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900  

 14 

OTHER: PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
We will be pleased to sign the District’s professional services agreement for recruitment services, however we 
respectfully request that the District will allow for a period of negotiation of certain terms in the professional 
services contract related to liability, indemnity, insurance, and other terms.  We have found that we have always 
come to an agreement with all of our clients in the past and appreciate the District’s flexibility in reviewing certain 
terms in a collaborative fashion between our legal counsels. 

INSURANCE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT  
Gallagher shall at all times during the term of this Agreement and  for a period of two (2) years thereafter, obtain 
and maintain in force the following minimum insurance coverages and limits at its own expense: 

 Commercial General Liability (CGL) insurance on an ISO form number CG 00 01 (or equivalent) covering 
claims for bodily injury, death, personal injury, or property damage occurring or arising out of the 
performance of this Agreement, including coverage for premises, products, and completed operations, on 
an occurrence basis, with limits no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence; 

 Workers Compensation insurance with statutory limits, as required by the state in which the work takes 
place, and Employer’s Liability insurance with limits no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury 
or disease. Insurer will be licensed to do business in the state in which the work takes place; 

 Automobile Liability insurance on an ISO form number CA 00 01 covering all hired and non-owned 
automobiles with limit of $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage; 

 Umbrella Liability insurance providing excess coverage over all limits and coverages with a limits no less 
than $10,000,000 per occurrence or in the aggregate; 

 Errors & Omissions Liability insurance, including extended reporting conditions of two (2) years with limits 
of no less than $5,000,000 per claim, or $10,000,000 in the aggregate; 

 Cyber Liability, Technology Errors & Omissions, and Network Security & Privacy Liability insurance, 
including extended reporting conditions of two (2) years with limits no less than $2,000,000 per claim and 
in the aggregate, inclusive of defense cost; and   

 Crime insurance covering third-party crime and employee dishonesty with limits of no less than $1,000,000 
per claim and in the aggregate. 

 All commercial insurance policies shall be written with insurers that have a minimum AM Best rating of no 
less than A-VI, and licensed to do business in the state of operation.  Any cancelled or non-renewed policy 
will be replaced with no coverage gap, and a Certificate of Insurance evidencing the coverages set forth in 
this section shall be provided to Client upon request. 

  



   
 

  
RECRUITMENT SERVICES FOR RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900  

 15 

SIGNATURE PAGE 
We thank you for your consideration of our proposal. We are committed to providing high-quality service and 
investing in a long-term partnership.  

This proposal is valid for ninety (90) days.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

By: KOFF & ASSOCIATES 

 State of California 

 
Frank Rojas       Date: December 8, 2023 

Recruitment Manager 



CONTRA COSTA WATER DISTRICT

Assistant General Manager 
(Water Resources, Operations & Maintenance)



of District operations including planning, organizing, and 
directing the District’s Water Resources Division and Operations 
and Maintenance Department; recommending policies and 
procedures related to assigned departments and divisions; 
providing highly complex assistance to the General Manager; 
and performing related duties as assigned. The AGM will oversee 
short- and long-term planning and the development and 
administration of policies, procedures, and services. Successful 
performance of the work requires knowledge of public policy, 
District functions and activities, including the role of the 
District’s Board of Directors, and the ability to develop, oversee, 
and implement projects and programs in a variety of areas. The 
AGM will oversee approximately 150 staff including represented 
employees. A background in water resources planning and 
operations as well as working with a unionized workforce is 
highly desirable. 

Duties include but are not limited to the following:

 ➤ Participate regularly in leadership and management programs 
and provide direction to staff and all levels of the organization. 
Promote effective and efficient operations throughout the 
organization by facilitating interdepartmental cooperation and 
sharing of resources.

 ➤ Develop, plan, and implement goals and objectives consistent 
with the District’s adopted organizational mission, values, and 
goals and utilize performance planning techniques to identify, 
establish, achieve, and measure goals and objectives.

 ➤ Train, motivate, and direct department personnel to build a 
department of high performance and accountability. Create 
consistent goals, priorities, and performance metrics to ensure 
fairness and equitability. 

 ➤ Lead and direct the management of water resources activities 
including securing and maintaining water supplies and water 
quality sufficient to meet District needs. Manage the District’s 
conveyance, storage, transmission, distribution, and treatment 
facilities, and districtwide water quality functions to ensure 
reliable 24/7 operations.

THE COUNTY
Contra Costa County is one of nine counties in the San Francisco 
/ Oakland Bay Area covering approximately 733 square miles. The 
County has one of the fastest growing workforces among Bay 
Area counties and is rich in ethnic, cultural, and socioeconomic 
diversity. With a current population above 1.1 million, Contra 
Costa County is the ninth most populous county in California. 
The County includes 19 incorporated cities with varied urban, 
suburban, industrial, agricultural, and port areas. A large part 
of the County is served by the Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
(BART) mass transit system, which has helped enable significant 
residential and commercial development. Prestigious public 
and private academic institutions, including Stanford University, 
University of California at Berkeley, University of San Francisco, 
the University of California at Davis, Saint Mary’s College, and 
various California State University campuses, are within driving 
distance.

THE DISTRICT
Based in Concord, California, the Contra Costa Water District 
(CCWD) delivers safe, clean water to approximately 500,000 
people in central and eastern Contra Costa County. Formed 
in 1936 to provide water for irrigation and industry, CCWD 
is one of the largest urban water districts in California and a 
leader in drinking-water treatment technology and source 
water protection. In addition to providing drinking water to 
residences and businesses in the community, CCWD also serves 
approximately 15 major industrial customers and 25 agricultural 
customers in the area.

MISSION
The Mission of the Contra Costa Water District is to 

strategically provide a reliable supply of high-quality 
water at the lowest cost possible, in an environmentally 
responsibile manner. This mission is accomplished using 

the following core values: Safety, Trust, Responsibility, 
Exceptional Service, Employee Success, Teamwork, 

Continuous Improvement, Recognition, 
and Communication. 

GOVERNANCE
CCWD is governed by five elected Directors, each representing 
a division of approximately 110,000 people. Each Director is 
elected to a four-year term. Elections are consolidated with the 
statewide election and held every two years in November on 
even-numbered years. Candidates must be registered voters 
and must reside within the District’s service area.

THE POSITION
The Assistant General Manager (AGM) of Water Resources, 
Operations & Maintenance is responsible for assisting the 
General Manager in managing and directing the activities 



 ➤ Represent the District as principal expert in regulatory 
proceedings, hearings, and/or formal meetings dealing with 
water resources, rights, and quality issues.

 ➤ Evaluate proposed, new, and current legislation to protect the 
District’s water supply, quality, and reliability. Provide counsel to 
the General Manager and Board of Directors regarding District 
positions and make recommended changes for legislation, 
water resource policy development and implementation.

 ➤ Work with Public Affairs to develop engagement strategies to 
ensure clear, consistent, and transparent communication of the 
District’s positions on legislation, projects, and related activities 
to support the District’s Mission and protect the District’s 
interests.

 ➤ Direct the procurement of water resources by leading the 
negotiation of complex agreements related to securing and 
maintaining water supplies of quality and quantity sufficient 
to meet District needs. Serve as the inter-agency liaison with 
state, federal, and local agencies and organizations.

 ➤ Build and maintain positive working relationships with inter-
departmental staff, partnering agencies, and the public using 
principles of good customer service.

 ➤ Research, prepare, and present staff, financial, operations, and 
administrative reports and other necessary correspondence to 
various audiences, including the Board of Directors. 

 ➤ Lead by example and serve as a champion for the District’s 
Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Program and the Employee 
Health and Safety Program with continuous improvement 
efforts. 

 ➤ Performs related duties as assigned.

THE IDEAL CANDIDATE
The ideal candidate will be an innovative, collaborative team-
builder and strategic leader with extensive management and 
technical abilities. The successful candidate will be hands-on, 
creative, and solutions-oriented, able to create hybrid teams 
using a combination of internal staff, industry partners, and 
external consultants to build a culture of efficiency using best 
practices and continual process improvement, teamwork, and 
an environment of high performance. Solid communication 

and interpersonal skills are necessary to establish positive 
working relationships; must be approachable and work well 
with individuals at all levels of the organization. The selected 
candidate will exemplify personal integrity, political savvy, 
dedication to public service, and a commitment to the core 
values of diversity, equity, and inclusion. 

Key Attributes and Characteristics

 ➤ A solid leader and role model with a positive presence 
who demonstrates initiative, is action-oriented, exercises 
good judgment, treats others with respect, and is open and 
approachable.

 ➤ An active problem solver who anticipates and responds to 
problems in a timely manner, develops alternative solutions, 
and is able to bring resolution to issues quickly, involving 
others as needed.

 ➤ A relationship builder, committed to excellence with a strong 
customer service ethic and the ability to empower employees, 
while also holding them accountable.

 ➤ A commitment to diversity, equity, and inclusion in growing 
and building staff and team support.

 ➤ An outstanding manager of people who provides guidance 
and professional support to staff, offers regular feedback to 
employees, and serves as a mentor in providing training and 
growth opportunities.

 ➤ An individual who leads from the front and is willing to roll 
up their sleeves in emergency situations. A working manager 
who motivates by example as well as inspiration. 

 ➤ Excellent communication and interpersonal skills necessary 
to build and foster positive working relationships with all 
levels of staff, executive leadership, government agencies, 
and other key stakeholders and business partners. 

 ➤ A leader who is collaborative and supportive in working with 
executive leadership, ensuring the organization works toward 
a common goal.

 ➤ A person with the highest ethical standards who commands 
the trust and respect of peers through conduct of high 
integrity and professionalism.



 ➤ Participation in Social Security and Medicare.
 ➤ Extensive Wellness Program including 50% employer-paid 

gym membership.
 ➤ Health Insurance Credit for eligible dependents who have 

other medical benefit coverage. Educational Assistance 
Program up to $3000 per year per employee.

 ➤ Employer paid Employee Assistance Program offering 
counseling and referral services.

 ➤ Free admission to Los Vaqueros Reservoir that offers recreation 
areas, fishing, boating, and hiking trails.

APPLICATION AND 
RECRUITMENT PROCESS
The final filing date is Monday, October 2, 2023. 

To be considered, please electronically submit your resume, 
cover letter and a list of five professional references (references 
will not be contacted in the early stages of the recruitment) to: 
https://koffassociates.com/ccwd-assistant-general-manager-2/

Resumes should reflect years and months of positions held, 
as well as size of staff and budgets you have managed. For 
additional information, please contact: 

Frank Rojas
Phone (510) 495-0448 
frank_rojas@ajg.com 

Website: https://koffassociates.com/

Resumes will be screened based on the criteria outlined in this 
brochure. Candidates with the most relevant qualifications will 
be given preliminary interviews by the executive recruiter. Koff 
& Associates will report the results to the CCWD. The CCWD will 
then select candidates who will be invited to participate in a 
formal interview process. Extensive reference and background 
checks will be completed on the selected candidate.

QUALIFICATIONS
Any combination of education, training, and experience that 
would likely provide the knowledge, skills, and abilities to 
successfully perform in the position is qualifying. A typical 
combination includes:

 ➤ Equivalent to a bachelor’s degree from an accredited college 
or university with major coursework in engineering, business 
or public administration, or a related field.

 ➤ Ten (10) years of increasingly responsible administrative 
experience in water utility operations and maintenance and/
or water resources management.

 ➤ Five (5) years of senior level administrative and management 
responsibility.

SALARY AND BENEFITS
The salary range for the Assistant General Manager – Water 
Resources, Operations & Maintenance) is $236,017.00 - 
$286,894.44. The starting salary is expected to be at mid-
point. 

In addition to a competitive salary, for regular-status positions, 
the Contra Costa Water District offers an excellent benefits 
package as follows:

Unrepresented employee benefits include:
 ➤ Employer-paid medical, dental, vision, and life insurance.
 ➤ Employer-paid short term and long-term disability insurance. 
 ➤ Voluntary participation in the Flexible Spending Accounts for 

dependent care and healthcare reimbursements.
 ➤ Flexible Benefit of $170 per month; equating to $2040 per 

year. 
 ➤ Voluntary participation in the 401(a) and 457(b) deferred 

compensation plans with up to a 5% employer match.
 ➤ 11 paid holidays plus 16 hours of floating leave per year.
 ➤ 110 hours of paid administrative leave per year.
 ➤ 15 days of vacation accrual during the first two years; 17 days 

per year accrual from years two to four; with additional accrual 
increases thereafter.

https://koffassociates.com/ccwd-assistant-general-manager-2/


     Recruitment  Proposal 

 

Executive Summary 

This Proposal outlines the recruitment services proposed by W3GLOBAL for the Assistant 
General Manager Opportunity Offered by Reclamation District 900. This document also 
includes specific terms and conditions for the services we provide. 

 

• Contact information 

o Bob Wagner 
o bob@w3global.cm 
o 469-252-5782 

• About us and our resources? 

o W3Global has been in this business for the past 16 years and well established in 
Non IT and IT staffing and we are built with 600+ employees throughout the U.S, 
Canada, U.K, India and soon starting in the middle east. 

o We have extraordinary ATS with our own database of candidates, apart from this 
we have premium accounts with LinkedIn, Indeed, Monster and Career Builders as 
we do not compromise on quality and don’t mind spending on these tools to get our 
clients what they need. 

• How many clients are you currently working with? 

o I have been working with W3Global, Inc for the past 5 years and have had chance 
to work with numerous clients and most of them are pretty happy with my turn 
around time. 

• What type of service level commitment do you provide to your client? 

o Excellent commitment is what I can offer you as I have ace recruiters who can get 
you the right level of candidates that you are looking for and ensure that the quality 
and the experience would not be compromised while sending the resumes. 

 



 

• What is your area of specialty in recruiting? 

• Me and my team has been successful in Waste Water Treatment facilities, sales, 
Construction and manufacturing related jobs. But I’m jack of all trades and I have worked 
on various jobs with various requirement that clients requested for. 

•  Specially for Wastewater Industry have placed Operations Superintendent, Maintenance 
Manager, more than 15 wastewater operators, 2 Reliability Supervisors, 1 
communications manager, 1 Purchasing Manager and 1 Operations supervisor, 2 HRs 
in the past 3 years. 

 

• Our terms: 

o Fee: 20% on the candidate’s annual base salary. 
o Payment terms: 15 days from the start date of the candidate. 
o Warranty: 60-day free replacement 

 

Looking forward to working with you  

 



 Page 1 of 3 
 

General Manager Update 
 
 January 2024 
ADMINISTRATION/FINANCE 
 
Staff working with District’s accountant for our yearly audit. 
 
Staff will be going through CPR and First Aid training within the next several months. Yolo County will 
be providing the training. 
OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE 
 
LEVEE/DRAINAGE/PUMP MAINTENANCE 
 
Ditch cleaning continues throughout winter. Staff is finding quite a few disposed of tires within ditches. 
Staff disposes at Yolo County Landfill. 
 
Staff coordinates often with the City for debris cleanup. 
 
Main pump station structural issues have been corrected. Two of the three pumps/motors have been 
installed and are operational. Third pump should be up and running by the end of January. There is 
plenty of pumping capacity at this pump station even with this pump not operational.  
 
 
PROJECTS 
 
Blacker Canal Bank Stabilization Project 
 
Still working with Dept. of Fish and Wildlife (DFW) to discuss permit requirements. District Staff and 
consultants are countering mitigation requirements and have invited DFW to visit the site in person so 
that they understand the project better. Tree mitigation is one of the major sticking points. DFW wants 
the District to mitigate non-native trees and the same ratio as native trees. The District has two existing 
mitigation sites that may need to be used to meet DFW permit requirements. 
 
Construction of Blacker Canal proposed for summer 2024.  
 
RD900 OFFICE, 889 DREVER ST. 
 
 
WATER LINES 
Meeting with contractors to discuss best approach for replacing water lines in office.  
 
ROOF 
A Request for Proposal has been issued to repair roof over the garage.  
 
OFFICE LANDSCAPING AND SIGNAGE 
The District’s engineer will prepare landscaping plans and signage for the office building. 
 
 
PERIODIC LEVEE INSPECTIONS 
 
DWR/USACE 
USACE periodic inspection was originally slated for September. District has not heard from the USACE 
for an updated schedule. 
 
Damages from this past winter to the levee along the Deep-Water Shipping Channel and the 
Sacramento River levee near the City’s Water Treatment intake have been inspected by the USACE. 
These projects will be covered under PL84-99. Repair work will probably not occur until 2025/26.  
 



Reclamation District 900 
January 2024 General Manager Update 

 
 
 
 

 Page 2 of 3 
 

District will be meeting with the USACE and DWR for inspection near the City’s Water Treatment 
intake on January 17. 
EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 
 
FEMA/Cal-OES 
FEMA and District staff have completed analysis for debris cleanup and electrical and fuel overages 
for the pump stations. Final reimbursement numbers should be available in January. Damages to the 
Main Canal and the eastern portion of Blacker Canal are now being reviewed. 
 
COORDINATION WITH OTHER PROJECTS 
 
DWR/Central Valley Flood Protection Board 
 
COORDINATION WITH OTHER AGENCIES 
 
WEST SACRAMENTO AREA FLOOD CONTROL AGENCY/USACE 
The Yolo Bypass East Levee, South Project is complete with the exception of one gate at the end of 
Channel Drive. Gate should be installed by the end of January. 
 
The Yolo Bypass East Levee, North Project is getting underway. No construction will occur until after 
the wet season. 
 
 
 
FUTURE 
 
February 21, 2024 – RD 900 Board Meeting, 5:30 pm (potential conflict with Port Commission Meeting) 
February 22, 2024 – WSAFCA Board Meeting 9:30 am 
  



Reclamation District 900 
January 2024 General Manager Update 

 
 
 
 

 Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
 

            
           Rebuilt motors/pumps at Main Pump Station     Debris in drainage behind Walmart    
 
 
 

 
 Yolo Bypass East Levee, South, completed berm 
 
 
 
 


	GENERAL ADMINISTRATION – PART I
	CONSENT AGENDA – PART II
	REGULAR AGENDA – PART III
	Blake Johnson, General Manager/Secretary
	Reclamation District 900

	Agenda Report_FMAP_Final.pdf
	RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900 AGENDA REPORT
	OBJECTIVE
	RECOMMENDED ACTION
	BACKGROUND
	ANALYSIS
	Alternatives
	Coordination and Review
	Budget/Cost Impact

	This requires minimal staff time to administer the agreement and provides $296,100 in additional funding for levee operation and maintenance activities.
	ATTACHMENT


	Agenda Report_FMAP_CEQA Exemption_Final.pdf
	RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900 AGENDA REPORT
	OBJECTIVE
	RECOMMENDED ACTION
	BACKGROUND
	ANALYSIS
	Alternatives
	Coordination and Review
	Budget/Cost Impact

	This requires minimal staff time and fees to submit Notice of Exemption and pay County and California Department of Fish and Wildlife fees.
	ATTACHMENT


	EIF RD900_final.pdf
	Sheet1
	EIF PAGE 2.pdf
	Sheet1


	Agenda Report_Recruitment_final.pdf
	RECLAMATION DISTRICT 900 AGENDA REPORT
	OBJECTIVE
	RECOMMENDED ACTION
	BACKGROUND
	ANALYSIS
	Alternatives
	Coordination and Review
	Budget/Cost Impact

	Recruitment firms have a “standard” $25,000 fee for executive position recruitments.
	ATTACHMENT


	CPS_Proposal Exec Search for Reclamation District 900_Asst GM 12-2023.pdf
	Table of Contents
	About CPS HR Consulting
	Recruitment Experts

	Our Approach
	Key Stakeholder Involvement
	District’s Needs
	Commitment to Communication
	Aggressive, Proactive, and Robust Recruitment
	Diversity Outreach Process

	Methodology and Scope of Work
	Phase I - Develop Candidate Profile and Recruitment Strategy
	Task 1 - Review and Finalize Executive Search Process and Schedule
	Task 2 - Key Stakeholder Meetings
	Task 3 - Candidate Profile and Recruitment Strategy Development
	Task 4 – Develop Recruitment Brochure

	Phase II – Aggressive, Proactive, and Robust Recruitment
	Task 1 – Place Advertisements
	Task 2 - Identify and Contact Potential Candidates
	Task 3 – Resume Review and Screening Interviews
	Task 4 – General Manager Selects Finalists

	Phase III – Selection
	Task 1 - Design Selection Process
	Task 2 - Administer Selection Process
	Task 3 – Final Preparation for Appointment

	Timeline
	Our Executive Recruiting Team
	Project Manager Biography

	References
	Professional Fees and Guarantee
	Professional Services
	One-Year Service Guarantee

	Appendix A: Sample Brochure

	11-15-23_Meeting Minutes_DRAFT.pdf
	Minutes
	Blake Johnson, General Manager/Secretary
	Reclamation District 900



	Grant Recipient: Reclamation District 900
	Agreement Number: 2024-FMAP-RD900-01
	Project Name: Reclamation District 900 2023 - 2024 FMAP
	Project Manager: Blake Johnson
	Explain why this is not a CEQA defined project: The District reserves the right to assert that the work contemplated herein is not a project as definedby CEQA. The District, however, will proceed with a NOE on the basis that to the extent the work is a project under CEQA it is categorically exempt and a NOE is appropriate.
	Is this a CEQA project? YES: Off
	Is this a CEQA project? NO: On
	Is project exempt? YES: On
	Is project exempt? NO: Off
	Lead Agency has already filed a NOE: Off
	Lead Agency will file a NOE: On
	Estimated date: January 30, 2024
	Lead Agency will NOT file a NOE: Off
	Reason for exemption: The District's work on its facilities is categorically exempt under California Code of Regulations, title 14, section 15301, pertaining to "operation, repair, maintenance . . . minor alteration of existing public . . . structures, facilities, mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of existing or former use."
	List any source of funding: FMAP
	Address: 889 Drever Street, West Sacramento, CA 95691
	CEQA Lead Agency: Reclamation District No. 900
	Status: In process
	Date of Completion: January 30, 2024
	Estimated Costs: Less than $1,000
	State Clearinghouse Number: 
	Name of CEQA Document: 
	Type of Permit Required/Permitting Agency 1: N/A
	Type of Permit Required/Permitting Agency 2: 
	Type of Permit Required/Permitting Agency 3: 
	Type of Permit Required/Permitting Agency 4: 
	Type of Permit Required/Permitting Agency 5: 
	Type of Permit Required/Permitting Agency 6: 
	Type of Permit Required/Permitting Agency 7: 
	Type of Permit Required/Permitting Agency 8: 
	Date Received or Expected 1: 
	Date Received or Expected 2: 
	Date Received or Expected 3: 
	Date Received or Expected 4: 
	Date Received or Expected 5: 
	Date Received or Expected 6: 
	Date Received or Expected 7: 
	Date Received or Expected 8: 
	Print or Type Name: Blake Johnson
	Phone Number: (916) 371-1483
	Initial Study: Off
	ND/MND: Off
	EIR: Off
	DWR made findings: Off
	DWR received environmental documents: Off
	From Public Agency: Reclamation District 900
	FromAddress1: PO Box 673, 889 Drever Street, West Sacramento CA, 95691
	FromAddress2: 
	County of 1: Yolo
	County of 2: 625 Court Street #B01
	County of 3: Woodland, CA 95695
	Project Title: Reclamation District 900 2023 - 2024 FMAP
	Project Applicant: Reclamation District 900
	Project Location: 21.8 miles of levee within Yolo County and the limits of RD900.
	Project Location  City: 
	Project Location  County: Yolo 
	Description of Nature: Continuation of routine maintenance. Levee System protects property and inhabitants within the District boundary. 
	Name of Public Agency Approving Project: Reclamation District 900
	Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: Blake Johnson
	Ministerial Sec 21080b1 15268: 
	Declared Emergency Sec 21080b3 15269a: 
	Emergency Project Sec 21080b4 15269bc: 
	Categorical Exemption State type and section number: X
	Categorical Exemption Type and Section Number: Existing Facilities 15301, 15302, 15303
	Statutory Exemptions State code number: 
	Statuatory Exemptions: Code: 
	ReasonExempt: This project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) because the actions fall within the following categorical exemptions: Class 1 (Operation of Existing Facilities) (CEQA Guidelines SS 15301), Class 2 (Replacement or Reconstruction) (CEQA Guidelines, SS 15302), and Class 3 (New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures) (CEQA Guidelines, SS 15303)
	Contact Person: Blake Johnson
	Area CodeTelephoneExtension: (916) 371-1483
	YesNOWfiled: Off
	NOWfiledno: Off
	Date_2: 
	Date: 01/17/2024
	Title: General Manager
	Signed by Lead Agency: Off
	Signed by Applicant: Off
	Date Received for filing at OPR: 


